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ABOUT CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY
(STOCK CODE: 0092)

Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(“Champion Technology” or the “Company”)
(www.championtechnology.com) is a global
technology group offering innovative solutions in
the areas of communications software, wireless,
telematics, e-commerce, security, online entertainment
and e-gaming. The Group’s solutions are dedicated
to bettering the lives of people, enriching lifestyles,
promoting health consciousness, preventing
accidents, saving lives, as well as promoting probity
and responsibility in the conduct of the online industry.
Such solutions include software-enhanced wireless
messaging, radio products and systems, spark proof
intrinsically safe communications systems, responsible
gaming solutions, as well as networking and Internet
access products for customers, network operators,
and commercial, government and industrial clients.

With total assets of over $8 billion, the Group has a
global presence in more than 50 markets through a
network of regional offices and distributors. It includes
3 Hong Kong listed companies, namely Champion
Technology Holdings Limited and Kantone Holdings
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM,
whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Exchange. The Group also includes a
UK subsidiary previously listed on the London Stock
Exchange.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS M##%

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EIN\E  ZETHFE ZTERF ZZTRE ZTIEmAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FET FEL T

Results (for the year ended 30 June) ¥&(BEAA=THLEE)

- Turnover —E%8 3,635,049 3,164,287 2,996,668 2,461,710 2,249,968
~ Adjusted profit before taxation* —BRATER (F8%) + 997,860 945,815 800,118 610,013 468,536
- Adjusted EBITDA* — R MRS BE - HER

B BF (GHE) 1,732,511 1,440,991 1,194,335 821,224 802,010
~EBITDA —REARIE BE - HER

B4 7 BT (EBITDA) 991,929 1,327,245 1,098,563 784,795 697,458
- Profit — Al 190,456 626,818 549,994 458,726 296,550
- Dividends —RE 48,112 96,686 73,096 59,867 55,304
~ Eamnings per share (in HK cents) —BREF (BL) 11.31 4370 43.08 37.94 3213

Financial Position (as at 30 June) BHRR(RAA=TR)

- Cash and cash equivalents -Re AL EHE 350,728 347,482 921,264 737,79 719,206
- Total assets ~AEHE 8,446,159 7,657,367 6,453,200 5,561,082 4,945,942
- Equity — R 6,685,006 6,137,672 5,258,760 4,704,867 4232113

Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) BHER(RAA=TR)

- Current assets/Current liabilities - RBEE/ REBAE 3.13 432 6.88 538 443
- Assets/Equity —4E/ R 1.26 1.25 1.23 1.18 1.17
- Sales/Assets —2EE/EE 043 0.41 0.46 0.44 0.45
- Gearing ratio —EERL X 0.04 0.04 003 0.04 0.04
* Excluding impairment and fair value change of convertible bonds * Ret NRER AR ES R T EEZE
SIXTEEN YEARS OF SUSTAINED A NERFR A
PROFITABILITY (B&#T)
(in HK$ million)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

Fiscal year 2008 was marked by great uncertainties as the
global financial crisis continues to unfold.

Viewed against this backdrop, we have achieved
satisfactory results for the year ended 30 June 2008, and
have maintained our record of sustained profitability for
16 years. The Group’s fundamentals remained strong, as
reflected in healthy growth in turnover, a steady base of
recurrent revenue, and a range of products and services
that deliver value to clients worldwide.

Profit attributable to equity holders was impacted by
impairment losses arising from the Group’s investments
in compliance with international accounting standards
to review the carrying values of the financial assets as
compared to the estimated cash flow or recoverable
amounts from these assets. Excluding such impairment,
the Group's results registered positive growth.

Our financial performance is summarised below:

. Turnover increased by 15% to HK$3.6 billion

. Adjusted profit before tax (before impairment and fair
value change of convertible bonds) went up 5.5% to
HK$998 million

. EBITDA (excluding one-off items) rose 20% to
HK$1,733 million

. Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$190
million

. Adjusted earnings per share (before impairment and
fair value change of convertible bonds) was HK45.55
cents, earnings per share was HK11.31 cents

The Group maintains a positive financial position with net
cash, adheres to a prudent financial management policy,
and does not enter into speculative derivatives or structured
product transactions.

Our core business of developing and designing customised
wireless systems and communications software solutions
was performing well. In particular, we benefited from
increasing demand as a result of China’s economic

growth at double-digits. On a global basis, the need for
nations to invest in public safety and security, as well as for
enterprises to raise productivity and efficiency amidst ever-
increasing competition, is as clear now as ever.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In anticipation of continuing tight liquidity and market
volatilities, as well as grim outlook for economic growth
based on estimates by economists, future corporate
earnings across the board are expected to come under
pressure. The Board has therefore opted for a prudent
cash management policy and recommends a final dividend
of HK0.25 cent per share. Taking into account the interim
dividend of HK2.45 cents per share, total dividend per
share would be HK2.7 cents; and total dividend for the year
would amount to HK$48.1 million. This translates into a
dividend yield of 10.6 percent, which is competitive with the
market.

BUILDING LONG-TERM VALUE

BY COMMITTING TO ONGOING
DEVELOPMENT AND STRATEGIC
INVESTMENTS

Throughout the years, the Group has adopted a long-

term commitment to ongoing investment and development
as the basis for the Group’s innovation, which is the key

to sustained growth, especially in the high-technology
industry. Our innovation strategy requires a unique
combination of internal development, partnerships, and
acquisitions. Going forward, we are determined to continue
to take good business risks.

Year-on-year, the Group has invested significant amounts
on activities and projects that directly add value to our
businesses. These strategic investments are the building
blocks for our future business units and the sources of
future cash flows and value for our shareholders. We
have spent huge amounts positioning and defending our
intellectual property. We build high-growth businesses
that are going to be important asset plays, including our
comprehensive range of homeland security solutions,
investment in In-Car Telematics solutions, anti-radiation
products, ID card project with related IT security
opportunities, and more recently, investment in smart port
logistics solutions as completed in May this year.

In times of market uncertainties and global economic
downturn as we are currently experiencing, the
management will exercise stricter prudence, and some of
the new investments may be put on hold pending the return
of a more stable operating environment and improvement
in market sentiment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

Given the uncertainties arising from the financial turmoil,
the global economy is expected to cool down further

in the months or even years to come. While Champion
Technology’s business fundamentals remain strong, we
anticipate that continuing difficult conditions may further
dampen consumer and business confidence which will
affect customer purchases. Based on recent comments
from economists and analysts (see Wake-up Calls

on Global Financial Turmoil), the financial crisis

is going to affect every sector and every enterprise
across the board. As such, the occurrence of slowing
payments and possibly investment delinquencies and
project cancellations on a worldwide basis may lead to
further industry consolidation, and few can expect their
performance not to be affected.

Meanwhile, the Group’s investments in privately held
companies may be subject to impairment, especially
those in the start-up or development stages. We will
continue to exercise prudence in managing investment
risks and take a critical review of the Group’s
investment portfolio, making provisions and write-
downs where deemed appropriate, in compliance with
the requirements of the latest international accounting
standards. The rapidly deteriorating operating
environment and global financial markets may require
management to take greater caution with our financial
accounts in the future.

With Mainland China accounting for a significant
portion of our operations, we expect to benefit from its
continued economic growth. Infrastructure investment is
likely to grow with projects such as Sichuan earthquake
reconstruction, development of alternative energy
resources, and continued investment in the telecoms
and related sectors brought on by the success of the
aerospace projects.

In line with market trends, the Group’s business
strategy going forward will focus on high margin and
high growth sectors to achieve margin improvement. In
terms of business focus, customised communications
solutions and integrated security services for
applications in multiple markets and sectors will be

our direction for growth and expansion. That will
include a comprehensive portfolio that embraces
different technologies and wide-ranging applications,
covering biometric identification, smartcard solutions,
logistics and RFID (radio frequency identification)
technology, fraud detection systems, and mobile-
based applications using video and audio compression

technologies in telematics control, public safety, and
personal security. Meanwhile, as information technology is
widely adopted today across industries and businesses,
as well as our daily lives, new and emerging opportunities,
especially in fast growing China, may arise where we can
leverage our IT expertise to engage selectively in new
projects with attractive returns and good prospects.

Against economic and market uncertainties at multiple
levels, we will strengthen efforts on cost management

and efficiency improvement, and will closely monitor the
operating environment. Prudent as we have always been,
there are nevertheless external factors which are beyond our
control. It is nevertheless comforting to note that Champion
Technology’s management and directors are no strangers
to dealing with rough times. The past two decades of

our establishment were marked by a series of disturbing
events, among which were the stock market crash in 1987;
the Gulf crisis in 1990; the austerity measures in China in
1994 and 1995; the financial turmoil in Asia in 1997; the
burst of the Internet bubble in 2000; 911 terrorist attacks in
the US in 2001; the sudden outbreak of SARS in 2003; and
the beginning of the global credit crunch in late 2007, all of
which resulted in a confidence crisis and a slowdown of the
economy in the subsequent years.

For each of the previous crises, Champion Technology
has managed to emerge relatively unscathed, a testament
to how we build on our solid foundations and manage
business risks on a long-term basis. We hope that our
positive financial position will enable us to cope with the
current turbulent environment, and most importantly,

to continue to invest in our businesses and serve our
customers well.

APPRECIATION

Our accomplishments and solid performance over the
years are built upon fundamental relationships with all

of our stakeholders. | take this opportunity to thank our
shareholders, employees worldwide, customers, partners,
bankers, professional consultants, and our fellow directors
for their ongoing trust, confidence and support. As we forge
ahead in even greater uncertainties and turbulent operating
environment worldwide, such support and trust will prove
invaluable to our long-term development.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

24 October 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's core business remained strong, and growth
was reported in both revenue and profit at the operating
level before impairment and other operating expenses.
The key drivers were a stable economy in China which
continued to achieve double digit growth, and demand in
the global markets for the Group’s customised products
and solutions. The Group’s profit was reduced by
impairment provisions in relation to some of the Group’s
investments and loss on fair value change of convertible
bonds issued by its subsidiary, Kantone Holdings Limited.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group achieved a turnover of HK$3,635 million for the
year ended 30 June 2008 (the “Year”), an increase of 15
percent as compared with HK$3,164 million for the previous
year (the “Previous Year”). The increase in turnover was in
line with the roll-out of several new products and projects.
Gross profit increased by 14 percent to HK$1,288 million,
while gross margins remained steady at 35 percent. The
results reflected the Group’s continued investment in
product development and systems advancement, thereby
enhancing the value-added features of its products and
solutions.

Profit for the year was HK$255 million, a drop of 69 percent,
and profit attributable to equity holders was HK$190 million,
a drop of 70 percent compared with HK$627 million for

the Previous Year. Earnings per share for the Year was
HK11.31 cents (2007: HK43.7 cents). The decline in profit
was caused by a number of significant items, including:

. impairment losses of HK$57 million recognised for
available-for-sale investments

. impairment losses of HK$436 million recognised for
development costs for systems and networks
. impairment losses of HK$245 million recognised for

deposits and prepaid development costs
. loss of HK$2 million on fair value change of
convertible bonds

Impairment was provided for in compliance with
international accounting standards to review the carrying
values of the financial assets as compared to the estimated
cashflow or recoverable amounts from these assets.

In anticipation of the increasing volatilities in the global
markets arising from the financial turmoil, management has
exercised prudence to provide for impairment losses on
those investments where future income may be affected.

Excluding the above one-off items totalling HK$738 million
for impairment losses and HK$2 million in respect of loss
on fair value change of convertible bonds, adjusted profit
before tax was HK$998 million, an increase of 5.5 percent
from HK$946 million of Previous Year; and adjusted
EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation
and amortisation, impairment losses and loss of fair value
change of convertible bonds) was HK$1,733 million, an
increase of 20 percent from HK$1,441 million of Previous
Year.

The continuing demand for the Group’s customised
solutions in wireless technologies, communications
software, homeland security packages, and Internet-
related products and services was a result of our ongoing
investments in systems and networks which allowed us to
significantly improve customer-service metrics while driving
industry-leading productivity. The Group maintains a clear
competitive edge in providing customised communications
solutions for niche markets.

Total operating expenses went up largely in line with the
increase in turnover and as a result of a general increase
in staff costs on the back of rising inflation. Distribution
costs increased 12 percent to HK$54 million (2007: HK$48
million), while depreciation and amortisation expenses
went up 50 percent to HK$728 million (2007: HK$486
million), which were attributable to the roll-out of several
new projects. Total general and administrative expenses
increased by 22 percent to HK$262 million (2007: HK$215
million) due to a general increase in staff costs, audit fees,
and other professional fees.

Finance costs for the Year were HK$6.8 million, compared
with HK$9.6 million in the Previous Year.

China Police 2008

Champion Homeland Security Booth

Mobile Environmental
Monitoring Station

Champion Technology's Booth
visited by local Police
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

China market maintained its momentum in line with the
country’s robust economy, generating an overall increase
in capital expenditure by our customers to improve the
quality of their networks in order to meet increasing
demand. The Group enjoyed a trusted relationship with

its customers as a result of its proven track record as a
reliable technology partner established over the last 20
years. Key areas of focus were innovative communications
and security solutions and services customised to achieve
high reliability and high integrity. Our top-of-the-line
products embrace a comprehensive range of integrated
wireless solutions designed for remote management and
security applications; as well as command, control and
communications applications for use in mission critical
assignments involving public safety, personal security and
telematics control.

The Group’s new division, Champion Homeland Security,
has been working with international partners to offer
comprehensive customised solutions for integrated security
systems. Products and systems have been exhibited at a
number of trade shows and exhibitions in China, including
China Police 2008 — China International Exhibition on Police
Technologies and Equipment in April this year at Beijing
Exhibition Center.

The macro-economic tightening measures in China
appeared to have only a slight dampening effect on an
overheated economy last year, as such measures were
specific to certain sectors, which did not include basic
infrastructure projects relating to the telecommunications
and IT sector. For the Year, China sales accounted for
HK$2,783 million of the Group’s turnover, up 16 percent
(2007: HK$2,407 million).

In Europe, the Group reported satisfactory growth in
business due to outstanding performance in emergency
services and fire control projects, as well as the relaxation
of spending constraints on National Health Services
projects in the United Kingdom. Several long-term contracts
related to mobilising the communications systems for the
fire brigades in England and Scotland have been secured.
Some delays in systems delivery and project installation
were encountered as a result of certain vendors not
meeting the customers’ requirements. The situation has
led to revised schedules which may continue to impact
on the Group’s financial performance. Management is
closely monitoring the situation and will adopt appropriate
measures as and when required.

The Group’s Lone Worker and Personal Security solutions,
based on wireless mesh technology, reported satisfactory
growth in light of the changes in European legislations
concerning corporate liability for personal injuries which
raised the level of responsibility for protection of employees
in the workplace. Turnover attributable to the operations in
Europe was HK$597 million, up 11 percent (2007: HK$536
million).

The Group’s strategic investment in In-Car Telematics
solutions, anti-radiation products to counteract radio
emission from mobile phones, and ID card project with
related IT security opportunities progressed as planned.
These investments are subject to review periodically to
determine if progress was in line with original plan and if
anticipated benefits could be achieved. Where required,
impairment provisions at an appropriate level would be
made.

New Opportunity

In May 2008, the Group acquired Smart Port Group,
owner of certain intellectual property rights pertaining to
proprietary software systems for integrated logistics and
smart port management system. The acquisition allows
the Group to leverage its IT solutions, core competence

in wireless technology and applications, information
software expertise, and global presence as a strategic
investment for the development of logistics and smart port
management systems on an enhanced wireless platform
with the deployment of RFID (radio frequency identification)
technology. This is expected to provide the Group with an
attractive opportunity to expand business to new horizons
and capture new businesses arising from the steadily
increasing logistics demand in China. (Details of the
acquisition are provided in the Circular dated 9 May 2008.)

Professional Consultants

As the Group continued to expand its portfolio of
investments in online gaming and Internet entertainment,
we need to look beyond our management for leadership
and professional expertise in specialised areas. During
the year, the Group continued to engage the services

of professional consultants whose broad experience in
international gaming and global strategy has proved to
be of immense value in our ongoing pursuit of new and
exciting business opportunities in the global arena. These
consultants are:

. John Schreck, who had served as Chief Stipendiary
Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club, Director
of Racing in Macau, and Chief Stipendiary Steward
of the Australian Jockey Club. His expertise lies in
his great depth of knowledge of the global gaming
operations and the various regulatory frameworks.

. Michael Thornhill, who had served as a steward of
the Hong Kong Jockey Club and Senior Partner of
Johnson Stokes and Master, with particular expertise
in licensing arrangements and global strategy.

. Timothy McNally, who had served as Director of
Security and Corporate Legal Services of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club, and Assistant Director-In-
Charge of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI),
Los Angeles, California. His expertise lies in risk
analyses and security management of global gaming
operations.
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Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”)
Kantone continued to sustain growth. It recorded a
turnover of HK$1,613 million, an increase of 13 percent
over the Previous Year, and adjusted profit before

tax (before impairment losses and loss on fair value
change of convertible bonds) of HK$474 million, an
improvement of 1.6 percent. Profit attributable to equity
holders was HK$143 million, representing a drop of 65
percent compared with HK$412 million for the Previous
Year, attributable to impairment losses of HK$333
million in relation to some of its development projects
and investments.

Sales in China was in line with the country’s economic
growth. With China’s continued economic prosperity,
demand for Kantone’s customised solutions and
products was maintained, and the scope of possibilities
for IT applications has expanded. In Europe, UK

sales registered steady growth, as the resumption of
spending by National Health Services helped to offset
some delays encountered in the emergency services
sector. Kantone remained well-positioned to secure
new long-term contracts, especially in the arena of Fire
Services, Personal Security, and Marine Coast Guard
Security.

For e-Gaming and Online Entertainment, Kantone
continued to invest in betting software and CRM
(customer relationship management) solutions. Its
paperless lottery project in China is making progress
with enhancement of integrated gaming technology
solutions and online payment channels. In particular,
the popularity of text messaging and the increasingly
user-friendly interfaces on mobile-phones has
gained much traction among young people and the
more well-off white-collar workers. In the arena of
telephone-based betting market in China, Kantone
commands a leadership position. Its own e-lottery
platform with secure micropayment systems connected
to banks facilitates one-stop-shop automated betting
transactions for multiple lottery games.

The recent clampdown of lottery sales in Mainland
China on the Internet is designed to stop fraud and
malpractices of illegal websites. Such tightening
measures are expected to work to the benefit of
Kantone, being a legitimate provider of online solutions
and consultancy to some Mainland authorities, in
particular the regional Welfare Lottery Issue Centres, in
respect of telephone-based betting.

Directors are fully aware that globally lottery

and gaming business is fast growing, and such
business commands the level of risk and investment
commensurate with the higher return. In order to
capitalise on existing expertise, Kantone is exploring
further opportunities.

New Acquisition

In September 2008, Kantone acquired some valuable
sports media and sports technology assets in China,
providing room in the development of gaming software,
sports content, sports websites and sports network
systems. The acquisition allows Kantone to leverage its IT
solutions, information software expertise, and sports and
gaming endeavours for further development of the sports
media market. This is expected to open up to Kantone

an attractive opportunity to expand its business to new
horizons and capture new businesses arising from the
growing popularity of sports and related activities. (Details
of the acquisition are provided in the Circular dated 20
August 2008.)

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”)

Digital HK recorded a loss of HK$986,000 on turnover of
HK$5,018,000, compared with a loss of HK$12,000 on
turnover of HK$6,351,000 for the Previous Year. The lower
turnover reflected a combination of softening economy,

a highly competitive market, and Digital HK'’s strategy of
preserving margins by focusing on customised solutions.
Digital HK will continue to seek suitable investment
opportunities to diversify its revenue streams in order to
enhance shareholders’ value.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Financial Position and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remained positive with a low
gearing and a net cash position.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group had HK$351 million made
up of deposits, bank balances and cash and HK$27.8
million of bank overdraft. Current assets were approximately
HK$1,529 million (2007: HK$1,581 million) and current
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$489 million (2007:
HK$366 million). With net current assets of HK$1,040
million (2007: HK$1,214 million), the Group had maintained
a high level of financial liquidity. The gearing ratio of the
Group, which calculation was based on the Group’s total
borrowings of HK$279 million (2007: HK$268 million) and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$6,685 million (2007: HK$6,138 million), was 0.04 (2007:
0.04).

Total borrowings comprised bank borrowings of HK$250
million (2007: HK$230 million), bank overdrafts of HK$27.8
million (2007: Nil), other borrowings, which represented
block discounting loans, of HK$0.7 million (2007: HK$2.6
million), and convertible bonds of HK$35.9 million for 2007.
No convertible bonds were outstanding as at 30 June 2008.
Finance costs for the Year amounted to HK$6.8 million
(2007: HK$9.6 million).

Total bank borrowings comprised bank loans of HK$250
million (2007: HK$229 million) and mortgage loan of
HK$0.4 million (2007: HK$1.2 million). During the year, the
bank loans were rearranged to provide different repayment
terms with HK$201 million (2007: HK$229 million) repayable
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within one year, HK$4.7 million (2007: Nil) repayable in the
second year and HK$44.3 million (2007: Nil) repayable in
the third to fifth year. The mortgage loan of HK$0.4 million
(2007: HK$0.8 million) was repayable within one year and
nil balance (2007: HK$0.4 million) repayable in the second
year. The mortgage loan was secured by the Group’s land
and buildings with a net book value of HK$12.6 million
(2007: HK$12.9 million). Bank overdrafts of HK$27.8 million
at 30 June 2008 were repayable on demand.

The other borrowings of HK$0.7 million (2007: HK$2.6
million) were unsecured, with HK$0.5 million (2007: HK$1.9
million) repayable within one year and the remaining
balance of HK$0.2 million (2007: HK$0.5 million) repayable
in the second year and nil balance (2007: HK$0.2 million)
repayable in the third year.

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to financial prudence and
maintains a positive financial position with low gearing
and a net cash position. The Group finances its operation
and business development by a combination of internally
generated resources, capital markets instruments, and
banking facilities provided by its bankers.

All the borrowings were used by the subsidiaries of the
Company, bearing interest at floating rate and were
denominated in its local currencies. As such, the currency
risk exposure associated with the Group’s borrowings was
insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure

to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s capital commitments
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements
was nil (2007: Nil) and the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for was HK$363 million
(2007: HK$344 million). These commitments are set aside
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and
development of systems and networks.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2008, the Group employed over 1,500 staff
around the globe. Staff costs for the year under review
were HK$131 million (2007: HK$123 million). Remuneration
is determined with reference to market terms and the
performance, qualifications, and experience of the individual
employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries,
performance-linked bonuses, share options, retirement

benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, and
other benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee. In determining the remuneration
of the directors, the committee will consider factors such as
the Company’s operating results, individual performance,
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SCRIP
DIVIDEND SCHEME

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the directors have proposed a final
dividend of HK0.25 cent per share for the year ended 30
June 2008 (2007: HK3.5 cents per share) to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 27 November 2008. Taking into account the
interim dividend of HK2.45 cents per share paid on 13
June 2008, total dividend per share would be HK2.7 cents;
and total dividend for the year would be HK$48.1 million,
compared with HK$96.7 million of last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new
shares of the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of
scrip dividend, with an alternative to the shareholders to
elect to receive such dividend (or part thereof) in cash in
lieu of such allotment (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to the granting by the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited of a listing of and permission to deal in the shares
to be issued pursuant thereto. A circular setting out the
details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with the form
of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
as soon as practicable.

It is expected that certificates for shares to be issued under
the Scrip Dividend Scheme and dividend warrants will

be despatched to those entitled thereto on or before 23
January 2009.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 20 November 2008 to 27 November 2008, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the above
final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
and in the case of warrantholders, all duly completed
subscription forms accompanied by the relevant warrant
certificates and the appropriate subscription moneys, must
be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars

in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 November 2008.
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WAKE-UP CALLS ON GLOBAL FINANCIAL TURMOIL

In light of the rapidly deteriorating operating environment in September and October, we have assembled a
few thought-provoking quotations from economists, analysts, bankers, corporate CEOs, entrepreneurs, and
celebrities on global economy, corporate performance, and general market uncertainties.

Ben Bernanke, US Federal Reserve Chairman 16 October 2008

“By restricting flows of credit to households, businesses, state and local governments, the turmoil in financial
markets and the funding pressures on financial firms pose a significant threat to economic growth.”

This was despite consolidated responses by relevant authorities in US and Europe to cushion the downside
risk facing the global economy.

JP Morgan Asia Pacific Equity Research 10 October 2008
“Valuations are less important than safety in a credit crunch environment. We believe companies with a net

cash position, decent working capital level, free cash flow, solid fundamentals and customer base, are the
ones that will survive.”

Intel Corporation CEO on Third Quarter Results 14 October 2008
“Current uncertainty in global economic conditions makes it particularly difficult to predict product demand

and other related matters, and makes it more likely that our actual results could differ materially from
expectations.”

Bank of America Chairman on Third Quarter Results 6 October 2008
“The economy has moved to a recessionary environment and the risk of a prolonged recession has

increased.” “We have announced two initiatives to raise capital, which are to sell stock, and to reduce
dividend payment.”

George Soros, Billionaire Investor October 2008

“This is the crisis of my lifetime. | haven’t seen anything like it and | won't see anything like it again.”

Director of a Securities Brokerage Company October 2008

“The stocks are dirt cheap. That's really a vote of no confidence.”

John Tsang, Hong Kong Financial Secretary 13 October 2008

“The chance that Hong Kong's economy will fall into recession next year is getting higher and higher.”

Justin Lin, World Bank Chief Economist 12 October 2008

“China may come through the global financial crisis in better shape than other countries. First, China has
the world’s largest foreign exchange reserve; second, the nation’s capital control policy has helped set up a
financial firewall against the contagion; third, China has a sound financial position, with surpluses recorded
in the past four years. China can bolster the economy by boosting domestic consumption and implementing
such measures as spending on education and health care.”

Bill Gates, ex-Chairman of Microsoft 6 October 2008

“This is a very interesting crisis,” stressing that he believed “increased innovation and investment would be
the answer to the current crisis.”
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul KAN Man Lok, 61, is the founder and Chairman.
He is also the Chairman and an executive director

of both Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”) and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK"), subsidiaries of
the Company whose shares are listed on the Main Board
and the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”) respectively. Mr. Kan holds

a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and has over 40 years
of experience in the computing and telecommunications
industries. Prior to setting up the Group in 1987, he was
the general manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a joint
venture computing services company of Cable & Wireless
Group, HSBC, Jardines and Barclays.

Mr. Kan has received a number of prestigious awards
from local and international professional bodies as well
as governments in recognition of his contribution to

the community and the industry. These include Young
Industrialist Award (1992); Hong Kong Business Award-
Enterprise Trophy (1993); Governor’'s Award for Hong
Kong Industries (1989); Honorary Doctor of Humane
Letters Degree by the University of Northern Virginia,
United States (2005); Honorary Fellow of the Academy
of Chinese Studies (2005); Commander of the most
Excellent Order of the British Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty
Queen Elizabeth Il (2006); Commendatore dell’Ordine
della Stella della Solidarieta Italiana by the Italian Prime
Minister Hon. Romano Prodi (2006); the Hong Kong SAR

Government’s appointment as a Justice of the Peace (2006);

and Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur by the
Government of France (2007).

In civic duties, Mr. Kan served twice on the Exchange
Corporate Governance Working Group during 1994-1995
and 1999-2000, and was a member of the Listing
Committee of the Exchange for the period 1999-2003. He
is currently the Chairman for the fourth successive term of
the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry Council;
Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance; Chairman of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Information and

Communications Technology Services Advisory Committee;

Chairman of ICT Working Group, Hong Kong — United
Kingdom Business Partnership; Convener of Hungarian

— Hong Kong Innovative Business Council; Council
Committee Member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries; and Member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election
Committee for the IT sector. Other memberships include
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Anhui Province in the PRC, and the Election Committee

for the Hong Kong representatives of National People’s
Congress of China.

Mr. Kan also sits on the board of CLP Holdings Limited as
an independent non-executive director.

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 52, is the Company’s executive
director and the Chief Executive Officer, as well as a non-
executive director of Kantone and Digital HK. He is a
brother of Paul Kan Man Lok, Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall

policy and development strategy as well as the Group’s
global operations and management. Prior to joining the
Group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions in
several international companies in Hong Kong. He holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Dalhousie
University in Canada and a Master’s degree in Economics
from the University of Alberta in Canada. In 2006, Mr. Kan
completed the Oxford Advanced Management Programme
at the Said Business School of the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the IT Committee of the Hong
Kong IT Alliance; Honorary Secretary and Council Member
of Internet Professional Association and Co-Chairman of
Special Interest Group in Venture Capital and New Business
Development; Member of the Telecommunications
Standards Advisory Committee at the Office of the
Telecommunications Authority; and Member of the Ad Hoc
Committee for International Outreach and Multi-national
Corporations of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.
He serves on a number of sub-committees of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, including International
Development and Co-operation Sub-committee and Sub-
vented Funding Sub-committee. He is also the Convener
of China Investment, Development and Co-operation Sub-
committee.

LAI Yat Kwong, 60, is the Group’s executive director and
the Chief Financial Officer, with responsibility for its financial
and accounting policy and control. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer (Acting), Chief Financial Officer and an
executive director of Kantone, as well as a non-executive
director of Digital HK. He joined the Group in March 1994
as Vice President of Internal Audit and Control. In July 1997,
he took on responsibility as the Chief Financial Officer

of Kantone. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and has over 36 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and company secretarial matters. He is a fellow member

of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(Practising).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Shirley HA Suk Ling, 52, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004. She is the
Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of Digital
HK, as well as a non-executive director of Kantone. She
joined the Company in 1992 as its Executive Vice President
with responsibility for its corporate development. She has
over 25 years of business experience including 10 years in
investment banking.
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Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
She is a General Committee Member of the Federation

of Hong Kong Industries and Vice Chairman of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council; Executive
Committee Member of Internet Professional Association
and Co-Chairman of Special Interest Group in Venture
Capital and New Business Development; Member of
Information and Communications Technology Industry
Training Advisory Committee of Education and Manpower
Bureau of HKSAR; Honorary Secretary of Hungarian —
Hong Kong Innovative Business Council; and Mentor under
the Mentorship Programme of the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation. She is also a member of the
Hong Kong Corporate Counsel Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Terry John MILLER, 69, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 1992. Previously,
he held the position of Deputy Chief Executive at Hong
Kong Telecommunications Limited, and was the Regional
Director, Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC. He is a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and is the former president of the Hong Kong
Institute of the International Association of Financial
Executives.

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, 78, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since February
2000. He is also the Chairman of the audit committee. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Digital HK in March 2000. Mr. Knight is the Chairman
and Managing Director of Asian Security and Investigation
Services Limited. He has over 20 years’ experience in

the field of copyright protection, security and commercial
investigations, and acts as security adviser to a number
of major organisations. Mr. Knight is a member of the
International Association of Police Chiefs; a member of
the Hong Kong Intellectual Property Society; and a fellow
of each of the British Institute of Directors and the British
Institute of Management. He is also a former President of
the American Society for Industrial Security (Hong Kong
Branch).

Professor LIANG Xiong Jian, 74, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
November 2001. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Kantone. He has over 30 years of experience in
telecommunications in China. He is presently a professor
of the School of Economics and Management at the Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications (BUPT) and
Director of the Research Institute of Telecommunications
Management of BUPT. From 1986 to 1993, he was the
Dean of Management Engineering Department of BUPT.
His other positions include member of National Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCC); Deputy to the People’s Congress, Beijing
Municipality; General Committee Member of China Institute
of Communications and Director of Communication
Economy & Management Committee. He was also an
independent director of PRC company China Satcom
Guomai Communications Company Limited, which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with its main businesses
in data communications, messaging, and wireless
telecommunications.

Professor Liang is well-known to the telecom community in
Hong Kong, having been invited on numerous occasions
to chair and lecture at major wireless and various other
telecom conferences held in Hong Kong and the Region.

Professor YE Pei Da, 93, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since November
2001. He is also an independent non-executive director

of Kantone. He is a professor and Honorary President of
Beijing University of Posts & Telecommunications in China,
and a director of Lucent Technologies Fibre Optic Cable
Company. He is also a senior member of the Chinese
Academy of Science.

Frank BLEACKLEY, 71, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since November 2001.
He is also an independent non-executive director of
Kantone. He was formerly Managing Director of Chubb
China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Chubb Security
Group, a manufacturer and distributor of security and
safety products and systems headquartered in the United
Kingdom. He has more than 30 years of experience in the
management and business development of joint venture
companies in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 52, has been the Company
Secretary since 1992. She is a solicitor practising in Hong
Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of Kantone and
Digital HK.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Francis KAN, 60, is Executive Vice President, Systems
Development, and has held positions of responsibility in
information technology, both in Hong Kong and abroad,
for over 20 years. Since 1994, he has been responsible

for the operations and expansion of the Group’s systems,
overseeing all Internet-related activities and alliances with
major partners. He is a brother of Paul Kan Man Lok. Mr.
Kan has a Master's degree from the University of Alberta in
Canada.

Iris KOO Kin Hing, 44, is Senior Vice President, Finance,
overseeing all financial operations of the Group. She is
based in Macau. Before joining the Group in 1989, she
worked at an international accounting firm where she

had gained valuable experience. She holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

FUNG Kin Leung, 47, is Senior Vice President of
Microelectronics. He is responsible for managing the
Group’s research and development capacity to facilitate
its global operations. He is also a director of several of

the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Fung has over 20 years’
experience in software and product development. He
joined the Group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was
promoted through the ranks to his current position. In
recent years, he has been focusing on the development of
information delivery systems to enhance wireless Internet
applications. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Science and
Electronics from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a Master’s degree in Electronics Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer as
well as a member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers
and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 47, is Managing Director

of the Group’s Brazilian operations. He is responsible for
running and developing business in South America. He is
also Vice President of Interactive Knowledge Delivery for the
Group's International Operations, overseeing international
clients’ requirements for enterprise solutions. He joined the
Group in 1997 and set up from its inception the business

in Brazil. He holds a Master’s degree in Aerospace
Engineering from Sup’Aero in France and an MBA from the
London Business School.

WANG Yu Peng, 43, was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer, e-Lottery Business at Kantone in September 2005.
He is the founder of a member company of the Group
which is a pioneer systems developer and service provider
in paperless betting systems in China, and a graduate of
Tsing Hua University in Computer Science. He owns two
invention patents in telephone betting systems.

Roy GOSS, 65, is Director of International Business, with
responsibility for the Group’s contract negotiation, licensee
management, agency distribution and customer liaison.
He is based in Macau and is also a director of several of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss is a seasoned expert

in finance and telecommunications, having served in the
Middle East and Macau with Cable and Wireless companies
for almost 20 years. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the Finance Director of Macau
Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable and
Wireless PLC, where he worked for more than 17 years.

Stephen GENTRY, 52, is Head of International Businesses
at Kantone and Chief Executive of Multitone, a member
company of the Group, with responsibilities for formulating
the overall policy and development strategy for the Group’s
international operations. He is also a director of several

of the Group'’s subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group’s various
European and American operations. He was promoted to
the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in 2003 and is a
member of the Institute of Directors.

Detlef KRULL, 62, is Managing Director of German
operations at Kantone, responsible for Central European
activities. He joined the Group in 1974 and concentrated on
project management. He became the Managing Director
of the German operation in 1993 and was promoted to the
Multitone Board in 1995. He holds a degree (Diplom-Ing)

in both Electronics and Business Administration and has
significant experience in wireless messaging.
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Frank ROTTHOFF, 45, is Managing Director Designate

of the Group’s German operations. He joined the Group in
2008 and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management within the electronics industry. His earlier
career covered international sales of industrial machinery
and process technology before entering the semiconductor
sector in 1989. He was responsible for the sales
organisation of a leading European distributor of electronic
components before joining the Group.

Cindy MAK Man Yee, 40, is Vice President, Administration
and Logistics. She is the Group’s primary liaison point

with external organisations and coordinates a wide range
of the Group’s operations in logistics, corporate resource
development and purchasing. She joined the Group after
graduating from the University of Hong Kong in 1990, as a
management trainee and was promoted through the ranks
to her present position. Ms. Mak holds a Bachelor's degree
in Social Sciences and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration. She also serves on the Executive Committee
of Hong Kong IT Alliance.

Joanne CHIU Yim Fan, 37, is Vice President, Compliance,
with responsibility for promoting good corporate
governance practices for the Company in accordance
with the relevant listing requirements in Hong Kong. She

is also Vice President, Human Resources, responsible

for formulating and implementing the Group’s human
resources policies. Ms. Chiu graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's degree in Arts. She also
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management. She joined the Group in 1994.

Teresa TONG Seek Fan, 42, is Vice President, Operations.
She runs the Group’s call centre and is also responsible

for customer care, product design and the retail aspects

of the Group’s business. She holds a Bachelor's degree

in Business Administration. She joined the Group in 1990
and is a member of the Internet Professional Association
and the China Investment, Development and Co-operation
Sub-committee of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Industry Council.

Julia LEUNG Yiu Lin, 43, is Vice President, Business
Development, with responsibility for sales and marketing,
identifying distributors and sales agents, as well as liaising
with suppliers for the Group’s products and services. Ms.
Leung has served the Group in a number of key areas
since the start of operations in the 1980’s, having previously
worked with Cable and Wireless Group in Hong Kong.
She is also a member of the International Development
and Co-operation Sub-committee and the Education and
Community Awareness Sub-committee of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry Council.

Gary CHOY Kin Chung, 38, is Vice President, China
Investment. He oversees business investment in China
and plays a pivotal role in the execution of the Group’s
growth strategy in China. He is also a member of the
Group’s Investment Committee and a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Choy holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from Georgia Institute of
Technology, Atlanta, Georgia, USA and a Master's degree
in Business Administration (Executive MBA Programme)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1992 and worked with a number of divisions within
the Group.

Robert SIA Chun Chung, 36, is Vice President,
e-Commerce Projects at Digital HK, with responsibility for
technical management and systems support. He holds

a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the University

of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Electronic
Engineering from the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong.
He has been with the Group since 1995 and has worked
with a number of divisions within the Group. He also serves
on the Hong Kong Radio Paging Association and the Hong
Kong IT Alliance as an executive committee member, and
Telecommunications Standards Advisory Committee at the
Office of the Telecommunications Authority as alternate
member.
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SOCIAL REINVESTMENT AND CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

A B A AR S A

We are proud of our people and the way that Champion
Technology commits to acting as a good corporate citizen.
Underlying the Group’s business pursuits is a strong
sense to work for good causes, for more loving care, for
peace and harmony, and ultimately for a better tomorrow.
Our business solutions revolve around the themes of
safety, security, systems integrity and reliability, probity,
philanthropy, and community.

Last year we celebrated the Group’s 20th anniversary by
embarking on such social reinvestment efforts as cultural
events, academic and youth programmes, promotion of IT
adoption and responsible citizenship. During the year, we
have continued to support educational and cultural events
as well as exhibitions such as:

The 40th Joint School Science Exhibition;

“Peace and Harmony: The Divine Spectra of
Avalokitesvara from Tibet, China — with 108 pieces of
Avalokitesvara and related artifacts” exhibition;

China Space Expo cum Space Odyssey (jointly
organised by the various aerospace related
organisations from China);

“Treasures of the World’s Cultures from the British
Museum” exhibition;

“Fascinated by the Orient: Life and Works of Marc
Aurel Stein” exhibition;

“Paris 1730-1930: A Taste for China” exhibition.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, we have supported
two further events as follows:

“Otium Ludens Leisure and Play: Ancient Relics of the
Roman Empire” exhibition; and

“Visions of the Celestial Empire: China’s Image in
Western Cartography” exhibition (open to the public
till November 2008)

To be truly global today, a company has to do a lot more
than set up sales offices or research facilities in multiple
markets. Doing business is about relationships, not just
transactions. It is the Group’s strong belief that we have
to engage at the level of culture, as well as process. We
have to build trust, to be integrated with other civilizations
and communities, and to understand their point of view
on business and innovation. This takes time, requires
commitment for the long term, and we are prepared to
invest and continue with this meaningful corporate initiative
in the years to come.

Another area of passion for Champion Technology is the
importance of environmental sustainability. The Group is
committed to developing its “green” vision and strategy,
working closely with our suppliers to implement “green”
initiatives, and supporting environmental events such as
Greening for the Chest. The Group also participated in
the project in relation to Sichuan earthquake relief in
June this year.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in sales of general systems products,
provision of services (including software customisation and provision
of e-lottery services) and software licensing, leasing of systems
products, investments in telecommunications networks and projects
and e-commerce projects and holding strategic investments in
advanced technology product development companies.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 30 and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. An
interim dividend in scrip form equivalent to HK2.45 cents per share,
with a cash option, was distributed to the shareholders during the
year. A final dividend in scrip form equivalent to HK0.25 cent per
share, with a cash option, is proposed by the directors.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of the
Company during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the
aggregate of dividend reserve, general reserve, special reserve and
the retained profits of HK$1,689,972,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred an aggregate of approximately
HK$9 million mainly for the acquisition of additional plant and
machinery and telecommunications networks. Details of these and
other movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ASSOCIATE
Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2008 are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Non-executive director:
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Terry John Miller

Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight

Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian

Prof. Ye Pei Da

In accordance with section 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Leo Kan Kin Leung, Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling and Prof. Liang Xiong
Jian will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung and Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling have
offered themselves for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a term of one
year subject to retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s
Bye-laws. There is no service contract between any of the executive
directors and the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), and considers that the independent non-
executive directors are independent.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The Company and two of its subsidiaries, Kantone Holdings Limited
(“Kantone”) and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK"), each
has a share option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Kantone, Digital HK or any of their
respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares of the Company, Kantone and Digital HK respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company, Kantone
and Digital HK are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures

of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQO”)), which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as
follows:

i e AR e = i LT £ 2 2 R

ARRREMENBARNEREEBERAR(ER])
REESEE(BBEL ) GREERESS - Bt
EERAL(BEAAR  BARARBBEELERE
ZEHW% RZEE) JREBRELD BIRBEA
N BRRBBEREZRD -

ARRF] - BREBBEEZBRETIFBERANGES
BT IR EMIFEST o

Bir e MBS ImE M 31 pral 2 B A ST 8IS - AR
B EARMIME A RN FNEFE RS2 EEME
P UBR A REFAEBRE AR R R SUTAEME
ABREZ B ES MR o

i R AR R
R-FEN\FAAZHE  BAAARBEESRY

BIEDI([EH R EEED]]) F3s2&FE 2 IR A M
REAR  IRB(LTRARNEZETEFR NG
HETADMARBREBHERZMABRAR (B
PR D BITIE 2 BAN - ARRESHEAR R HEEM
1REHEE (E& R R ERPIEXVEL) 2 By - 48
RO ESHHEE R LRBWT

Approximate
percentage of

Number the issued Number
Name of director Capacity of shares share capital of warrants
HMEBITRE

EEnE &4 RHHE ZHRLEE RREIEE

Securities of the Company  Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok  Corporate interest Note 1 26.06% Note 1

RARIEF e St NEER B3 A

Securities of Kantone Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 59.79% Note 2

BBES S EEEE DR FMizE2 MizE2

Securities of Digital HK Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 3 79.98% -
HIEEAE e St NEER Fi3E3
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. 514,491,761 shares and 100,701,319 units of warrants (approximately
5.1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June
2008 when exercised) were held by Lawnside International Limited
(“Lawnside”). Lawnside is beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Paul Kan
Man Lok. As at 30 June 2008, Lawnside held interests in approximately
26.06% of the entire issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Paul
Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in these shares
and warrants owned by Lawnside. The warrants were issued by the
Company pursuant to a bonus issue effected in March 2008, all of
which will expire on 16 April 2009. These warrants have not been taken
into account in calculating the percentage of the issued share capital
of the Company held by it. Lawnside’s interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company are required to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Paul Kan
Man Lok and Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung are directors of Lawnside.

2. 1,740,200,873 shares and 300,278,027 units of warrants of Kantone
were held by the Company while 299,290,629 shares and 82,058,443
units of warrants of Kantone were held by Lawnside. The warrants were
issued by Kantone pursuant to a bonus issue effected in December
2007, all of which will expire on 8 January 2009. These warrants have
not been taken into account in calculating the percentage of the issued
share capital of Kantone held by them.

3. 117,300,000 shares of Digital HK were held by the Company and
2,669,171 shares of Digital HK were held by Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares

in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, none of the directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the securities, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as at 30 June 2008 as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries other than
Kantone and its subsidiaries (the “Kantone Group”) and Digital
HK and its subsidiaries (the “Digital HK Group”) had the following
transactions with the Kantone Group and the Digital HK Group:

A B AL 5 2 M

RAFER  ARBLEMBEAR(FAREWELR
A EREE DURBBEELENBLAR(T8IBEE
BRE DB BEEREBRNRBBEEREETT
535

Transactions Transactions

with the with the
Kantone Group Digital HK Group
HEREE HEHEES
ZRE EBZRS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHExT
Fees received for the provision of office premises &R AR EAEUELIR
and facilities, and management services, WAE R
on cost basis RERREER 100 522
Annual fee and technical fee paid (Note) ST E B R E R () - 111

Note: Digital HK Group had provided e-payment platform services to a
subsidiary of the Company at a fee chargeable with reference to
comparable market price as agreed.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, the above transactions were carried out in the usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms and are in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The aforesaid transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for
the provision of services to the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS BB R
As at 30 June 2008, the following persons (other than a director or REZTFZN\FRA=1TH  REZFHFRAE KOS
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in 336IEARARATRIFZ BT MR - TIIALT(R
the share capital or underlying shares of the Company as recorded NAERRITHAERIN) WA R B A SRR )
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section hHEREIAR
336 of the SFO:
Approximate
Number of  percentage
Number Description of  underlying of issued
Name of shareholders Capacity of shares derivatives shares share capital
HEBTRAE
RRAH a4 RHOBE FTETEHSB  HERGRA 2B =
Lawnside (Note 1) Beneficial owner 514,491,761 - - 26.06%
(FfE1) EREAA
Beneficial owner = Warrants to subscribe 100,701,319 5.10%
EalEEA for shares
RHERG 2 RIREE
Cheah Cheng Hye (Note 2) Founder of a 118,117,839 - - 5.98%
#EE (M) discretionary trust
G ZAA
Cheah Capital Management Corporate interest 118,117,839 - - 5.98%
Limited (Note 2)(FfizF2) NS
Cheah Company Limited Corporate interest 118,117,839 = = 5.98%
(Note 2)(Ffft2) NEER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee Trustee 118,117,839 - - 5.98%
International Limited XEEA
(Note 2)(fff&t2)
To Hau Yin (Note 2) Spouse 118,117,839 = = 5.98%
HI9E (Mz2) L]
Value Partners Group Corporate interest 118,117,839 - - 5.98%
Limited (Note 2) NI S
BREEARARF(MT2)
Value Partners Limited (Note 2)  Investment manager 118,117,839 - - 5.98%
BEESERAR(ME2) REKE
Allianz SE Corporate interest 112,401,666 - - 5.69%
(Note 3)(Hi#E3) AR
Dresdner Bank Corporate interest 112,401,666 - - 5.69%
Aktiengesellschaft NEER
(Note 3)(Hi#3)
Veer Palthe Voute NV Investment manager 112,401,666 = = 5.69%
(Note 3)(Fi#E3) REEE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:

1. See Note 1 to the section headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities”.

2. These shares were held by Value Partners Limited as investment
manager, Value Partners Limited is wholly owned by Value Partners
Group Limited. Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is a founder of a trust, the trustee
of which namely, Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited, holds
100% interest in Cheah Company Limited, which holds 100% interest
in Cheah Capital Management Limited, which in turn holds 35.65%
interest in Value Partners Group Limited. Ms. To Hau Yin is the spouse
of Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye.

3. Veer Palthe Voute NV held these shares as investment manager. It is
wholly owned by Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschatt, in which Allianz
Finanzbeteiligungs GmhH has 81.1% interest. Allianz Finanzbeteiligungs
GmbH is wholly owned by Allianz SE.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2008, no person had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company according to the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than convertible bonds and warrants set out in notes 28
and 30 respectively to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company and its subsidiaries had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June
2008. Particulars of the exercise of warrants or similar rights during
the year are set out in the aforesaid notes.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its distributors,
and purchases materials and components from suppliers who act as
its merchandisers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the aggregate amount of turnover
and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate customers
and suppliers through these distributors and merchandisers
respectively represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in the share capital of the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of significant post balance sheet events are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the Group for its employees takes into
account of the individuals’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. Details of the
directors’ emoluments for the year ended 30 June 2008 are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
24 October 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in the
year ended 30 June 2008.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company and they have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30 June
2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board met 5 times during the year ended 30 June 2008. Its
composition and the attendance of individual directors at these
board meetings were as follows:

R
RABBAO#EREKTFEZREER - REZEZZTZTN
FRAZTHIEFERN  ARFREETEAHERS
FIERARES EmER ([ EMERIDHER14F78E 2
EEATRTRISFAID Z A

o it e

AARERE ETRAIMBI0F TN L AR ESS
TEFRSNEETA(HETA N ER  RES
RITBAR PR~ ERTTA

ARRDAARAERESFLFESH  MEES
HEERREE-_ZZN\FAA=THILFERTEHE
ESTIRAEST AR R E IR -

o
ARRRERe((E5g )EE  REAREREK
ERARA - ERABRRMNEEAEE 2 EH 0 K
FSEAEERBAKY - EFFHITAREERE 2K
R - FEBEAER RIRARREE -

EEEgREE_TTN\FRAZTHLEFERNH/EST
SREH RERABREESTNREEFTEEAL
HEBERESRMT

Number of meetings
held during the

director’s term of office Number of
RESEH  meetings attended

Name ®E BT EERE FIHEEERE
Executive directors HTES
Paul KAN Man Lok (Chairman) A8 (F/Z) 5 5
Leo KAN Kin Leung® (Chief Executive Officer) — FSERR (77 #B%;) 5 5
LAI Yat Kwong RAX 5 5
Non-executive director FHITES
Shirley HA Suk Ling B 5 5
Independent non-executive directors BYFBTES
Terry John MILLER [=E 5 5
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 5 5
Prof. LIANG Xiong Jian PRI REUR 5 5
Prof. YE Pei Da 3PN E 5 5
Frank BLEACKLEY Frank BLEACKLEY 5 5

* Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung is a brother of Mr. Paul KAN Man Lok.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are segregated, with a clear division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting

its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors of the Company are appointed

for a term of 1 year and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meetings every three
years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 3 members, currently comprising
Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr. Terry John MILLER (independent
non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (executive
director). The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for the remuneration of directors and senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Remuneration Committee
met 2 times and work performed by the committee includes
reviewing the Group's remuneration policy for its executive directors
and senior management and their levels of remuneration. The
attendance of individual members at these meetings was as follows:

B AT B

ARRERRTHRERHBBETHR - WEWRE
mEZAE-

IRAREREEES  BREZSLE YRR
HEDEZBE  YWARBREERE - UWREE/HE
EFEMRELCEEBARER - EBREFEE - WA
BERRAKEEETRIFEEERERILIEF -

THEHEEEEAEE L HEE -

BT
KARFIBIERITES 2EHE A —F - WERER
RAZ AR BIFRARBIZREBFRAE L
FRERERET -

R
ANEREGNEZES([HNEEg])h3EKEA
A B BIe$EFrancis Gilbert KNIGHTSE A « E1E L4
(B IEHTESR) MEEBRR AL (BITEE) © Francis
Gilbert KNIGHT R EAFMEE G 2 £ -

AABERETRIPE 2 55| FIR HME R o 2 B
HE - ERGE —ARARREERSREBAEN
FMBRnEESRNES -

FMEEeNEE—TT/\FAAZTHIEFEAH
BIT2REH  ATERBESHARRNTEELD
REIRA B 2 FNBOR RS 2 KT - BB R
ZEGFHRHFIERHIOT

Number of meetings
held during the

director’s term of office Number of
REZEH  meetings attended
Name e BETZEBRE FREEEERE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 2 2
Terry John MILLER [=E 2 2
Executive director HITES
Leo KAN Kin Leung HES 2 2
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee has 5 members, currently comprising
Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY, Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT and Mr.
Terry John MILLER (independent non-executive directors); and

Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive director); and Mr. Paul KAN
Man Lok (executive director). This committee is chaired by Mr. Frank

BLEACKLEY.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been

determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and recommending to the Board for decision.

A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. Under the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders

every 3 years.

Potential new directors are selected on the basis of their

qualifications, skills and experience which the Nomination

Committee considers will make a positive contribution to the

performance of the Board.

No new director was nominated for appointment during the year

ended 30 June 2008.

The Nomination Committee met 2 times during the year ended 30

June 2008 and work performed by the committee includes reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; and reviewing the

independence of the independent non-executive directors of the

Company. The attendance of individual members at these meetings

was as follows:

HHERA

RAHAZEESHMSLKEMEK © B Al IE Frank
BLEACKLEY %t 4 - Francis Gilbert KNIGHT % 4 & i
B BUIERITES) - URERKRZ L (FENT
BE) R EE(FNITESE) © Frank BLEACKLEY
KEBRZEEGZER -

ARARESLETAETREZE G BIEHE -

RELZBEGARMEREERASMITESEZAL X
REFSHRLREREEBES -AEFSRELE
EZANERZERZEBARRBFRAS LEKRRE
# o REBEARBZARMA - AEESAEIF0WE
BRE-RRERRER -

HKREBERNRTEEFZALR  REZESHMU
FZENLZEE  REREREREHEST 2R
TR E T B RME RRUEEAE o

RHEZZZN\FRA=THLFEVERZZER
B=E-

REE-ZT/\FRA=ZTHILFERN REZE®
HEBITORGH  ETERBREENESSZRE - A
BB - ARBRAREBILIENTEE 2B
e ERBRZEERZHFIERHIILT

Number of meetings
held during the

director’s term of office Number of
RESEH  meetings attended

Name #E BITEERE FRHEEERE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES
Frank BLEACKLEY Frank BLEACKLEY 2 2
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 2 2
Terry John MILLER Hig 2 2
Non-executive director FHITES
Shirley HA Suk Ling B 2 2
Executive director HITES
Paul KAN Man Lok &3 4 2 2
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2008, the directors

are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a

going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached

to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June

2008.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system with an aim to safeguard the

shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets. The purpose is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material

misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s business

objectives.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2008, fee for the Company’s external

auditors for audit services was HK$5,740,000 (2007: HK$4,896,000)

and that for non-audit services mainly relating to taxation matters

and other services was HK$588,000 (2007: HK$599,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 4 members, currently comprising
Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and

Mr. Terry John MILLER (independent non-executive directors); and
Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling (non-executive director). The Chairman of

this committee is Mr. Francis Gilbert KNIGHT.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines

set out in the Code.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Audit Committee met 2
times and work performed by the committee includes reviewing

the Group’s interim and annual results as well as its internal control

system. The attendance of individual members at these meetings

was as follows:

i 2 M
EEPARSERUAADREMNAL - RZFTN
FRA=TH EFUTNBERAIETHRELE
RAFFBEERNNEATHAEMHBER - At
BERE IR EERBA R R 2 HBRE

SNEZHENH M BRI EEHINARABE_T
ZENFRAZTRIEFEZHBRE D 2B LA

s -

EEECUAKENREERS I BEETR - U
REFRZBEERARBZEE - BNAEREGE (M
R REL|MEAKRER - $5:R - BRI
FF o ARERM IR R EBAREE BB R ZA

A

Go o
S

A2 B i T 4
HE_ZTZ N \FEANA=ZTHLFEE  KQAIE
ZEEN 2 ZEBR B 55,740,000 T ( ZEZE+
4 4,806,000/70) + EEBATIH EE R EA R
2 B BRS E BRI 455880008 ( Z T HF ¢
599,000 7T) °

HHEAR
EZEZEEHABKELENK - B AIEIEFrancis Gilbert
KNIGHT 45 4 Frank BLEACKLEY %t 4 ¢ & 42 % 4
(BMIEMITES)  URERBRLZLCGEATES) -
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT/CAE BZZE G 2 £ ©

ARREREFRIMS IS RTEREZE G 2B
#HE -

HEZT/\FRA=THILEFER EXZEgH
BIT2REH  ATFREEHNAREZH L2 F
B UNHENEEERS - SRERZEERZH
FEEREIT

Number of meetings
held during the

director’s term of office Number of
MREZEH  meetings attended
Name e BETZEBRE FREEEERE
Independent non-executive directors BIAFHTES
Francis Gilbert KNIGHT Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 2 2
Frank BLEACKLEY Frank BLEACKLEY 2 2
Terry John MILLER [=E 2 2
Non-executive director FHITES
Shirley HA Suk Ling B 2 2
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 30 to 102,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June 2008
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 October 2008
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT ##&iH#55%

Sor the year ended 30 June 2008~ #F —FFE/FNJ] =1 HILFE

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETTLF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i FET FHET
Turnover BT 6 3,635,049 3,164,287
Direct operating expenses HELERA (2,346,833) (2,033,154)
Gross profit EF4azE 1,288,216 1,131,133
Other income EAA 7 31,913 64,542
Distribution costs DI (53,580) (47,902)
General and administrative expenses —BRITEX (262,104) (215,019)
Impairment losses recognised for AT EIRE
available—for-sale investments FrtER 2B EEE 18 (56,502) (80,605)
Impairment losses recognised for development 5t & £t R 4B 4% 2 FEA A
costs for systems and networks FREER 2 REE1E 15 (436,488) -
Impairment losses recognised for iz e RIE KA
deposits and prepaid development costs FriER 2 BEEE 20 (245,310) -
Impairment loss recognised for interest S YNl £ s
in an associate R 2 REEE - (312)
Gain on disposal of development costs for HE R G R ik 2 FE
systems and networks BRAS 2 Was 8 - 23,140
Gain (loss) on deemed disposal of WRALERBAR
subsidiaries ZWa= (E18R) 196 (465)
Loss on fair value change of ARRESF A T EEZ S
convertible bonds ol | (2,282) (32,829)
Finance costs BATS RS 9 (6,781) (9,614)
Profit before taxation R A ) 10 257,278 832,069
Taxation FiIa 11 (2,063) (9,171)
Profit for the year ANE S 255,215 822,898
Attributable to: FEAG = A
Equity holders of the Company RATRAESFTAA 190,456 626,818
Minority interests DEIR RS 64,759 196,080
255,215 822,898
Earnings per share BREN 13
- Basic 2N HK11.31 HK43.70
cents &4l cents P&l
— Diluted — HK11.08 HK43.42
cents &4l cents 7l

30



st R AR A R A

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #H&&EAER

at 30 June 2008 A —EENFENH =+ H

2008 2007
—EENFE ZETF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M e FEx FHT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB R 14 58,586 67,184
Development costs for systems ESSE kS
and networks (BN 15 2,743,823 2,137,057
Goodwill RS 16 36,795 36,795
Intangible assets mREE 17 5,310 7,670
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 18 1,509,822 1,786,794
Interest in an associate NN 19 - -
Deposits and prepaid development costs %% N F8FIZE R A 20 2,563,105 2,041,260
6,917,441 6,076,760
Current assets REEE
Inventories =wE 21 25,464 30,449
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EAMIRR 22 1,152,497 1,202,327
Taxation recoverable B EEE 29 349
Deposits, bank balances and cash T RITEFERES 23 350,728 347,482
1,528,718 1,580,607
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables JERE 5 R E AR R 24 248,931 87,291
Warranty provision RERE 25 2,136 1,860
Customers’ deposits RPEEE 6,275 9,803
Taxation payable FERHIIE 2,009 20
Bank borrowings — amount due RITEE
within one year —R—FRE|H 26 201,313 229,408
Other borrowings — amount due HibfgE
within one year —R—FREH 27 489 1,861
Convertible bonds ARRES 28 - 35,880
Bank overdrafts RITEX 23 27,816 =
488,969 366,123
Net current assets REVEEFE 1,039,749 1,214,484
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRSEE 7,957,190 7,291,244
Non-current liabilities B AR
Bank borrowings — amount due BITEE
after one year —R—F &3 26 48,952 373
Other borrowings — amount due Hinfg &
after one year —R—F1& 35 27 193 716
Retirement benefit obligations R RFSE 10 92,283 95,985
Deferred taxation RIERIR 29 157 149
141,585 97,223
Net assets BEFE 7,815,605 7,194,021
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CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #&&EAfERE
at 30 June 2008 R —EENENH =+ H

2008 2007
—EENFE ZETF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FET FHET
Capital and reserves BRZAS R bt
Share capital &N 30 197,450 160,362
Reserves & 6,487,556 5,977,310
Equity attributable to equity holders RRTRAERFTE A
of the Company FE(R R AN 2 6,685,006 6,137,672
Subscription right reserve of —MLEmHBRRZ
a listed subsidiary IR - 4,639
Minority interests DR S 1,130,599 1,051,710
7,815,605 7,194,021

The consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 102 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
October 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Paul KAN Man Lok f&37 4%
DIRECTOR %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A o IR AS i 2 5 B o

for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E _—FF/NFANH =1 H ILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRERSRERAARG
Capital Subscription
Share Share  Dividend redemption ~ Gemeral  Capital  Merger Translation Retained right ~ Minority Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total  reserve interests equity
L FRE JEBR  RAER
R BEEE BERE RERE -REE  BABE  GHRE  ENRE  REW i B | 1 85
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$00O
v T o T o S v /S v /A v A v/ G -7 S - T o S o A v
A1 July 2006 e 181420 1200677 43369 50 1366003 1054% 8358 (4520) 2338008 5,258,760 1850 833082 6093642
Exchange difierence arising on RAEERINZ
franslation of operafions SRFESTER
outside Hong Kong recognised NRAREREDL
directl in equity EXZE - - - - - - - (4.580) - (4.580) - (3880) (8460
Profitfor the year Ea] - - - = = = - - 66818 626818 - 196080 8228%
Totalrecognised income and EAERRL
expense for the year lxE = = = = = = = (4580) 626818 622,238 - 12200 814438
Issue of shares upon exercise RifaRES
of warrants H1ikiy 5,144 26529% = = = = = = - 20440 = - 200440
Onissue of subscription rights RETREE - - - = = = = = - - 2789 - 2789
Conversion of comveriblebonds B AfR{ES - - - - - - - - - - - T T5
Dividends for the year KEERE
- Underprovision n prior year -LERETR - - 0% - - - - - ) - - - -
~ntgim —hi = - R0 - - - - -0 - - - -
~final 573 = = 56,127 = = = = - (1) = = = =
Diidends paid EffRe - - B - - - - - - (7 - - (BT
Issue of shares as scripdvidend ~ EMRR SRR 378 6% (016) - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid to minorty inferests (P4 &R ZRE - - - - - - - - - - - (24800)  (4809)
Acquisition of additional interests ~ MEMERFZ
ina subsidiary BoMER - - - - - - - - - - - (%) (239%)
28942 311660 12758 - - - - - (966%) 296674 2789 26478 285941
At30 June 2007 RZEEtFAA=1A 160362 1,582,287 h6,121 5 1366003 10549 8358 (9,00) 2868140 6,137,672 4639 1,061,710 7194021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #if BAE s 58 B3
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #F = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FAERRERAARG

Capital
Share  Share  Dividend redemption  General
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve
&%
Bx  ROEE RSERE RERE  -RER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000
Thn T Thn T T

Subscription

Capital ~ Merger Translation  Retained right ~ Minority Total
reseve  reserve  reseve  profits Total  reserve interests equity

AE OEER R

RAER  AffER  EXER  REM ait Eid B8 L
HKS0O0  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000

Tén  TRn TR TEn TR TR A TEn

At 1 July 2007 RZB5tELA-R 160362 1,582,287 56,127 50 1366003 1054% 8358 (9100) 2868140 6,137,672 4639 1061710 7,194,021
Exchange difference arsing on REEFANN

ranslafion of operations SRFEETER

outside Hong Kong recognised MRAEERETL

directly in equity EXZE = = - - - - - 1402 - 1402 - 2011 3413
Proftfor the year EREH = = = = = = = - 19045 190456 - G470 25215
Totalrecognised income and FRERRL

expense for the year st = = - - - - - 1402 190456 191858 - 6670 258628
Issue of shares upon exercise

of warrants Tikh 503  753% - - - - - - - 81888 - 23 8209
Exercise of subscription rights RiTReB e - - - - - - - - - - 3 193 170
Conversion of convertble bonds RETRRES - - - - - - - - - - - %6 %66
Subscripfion ight of asubsidiary ~ MEATRERE

lapsed b3 = = = = = = = = 1188 1,188 (2329 1,141 =
Dividends for the year KEERE

~Underprovision n prior year - LERETR = - 1816 - - - - - (1819) - - - -

~interim ~HH - - 430 - - - - - (W30 - - - -

~final 7 - - 4936 - - - - - (4.936) - = = =
Dividends paid BRfE - - (W) - - - - - - (W) - - (W)
lssueof shares as sorip vidend. — EHRREBERE 45 53808 (38163) - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid fo minorty interests O8RS - - - - - - - - - - - (R (42340)
Issue of shares as considerations &7 EANE

for aoquisition of subsidiaries HBARZRE %6800 286,760 - - - - - - - 313560 - - 313560
Deemed acquistion of additional ~ WEAMENEAR

interests i a subsidiary BohER - - - - - - - - - - - (2860)  (2860)

37088 416508 (51,191) - - - - - (46%4) 355476 (4639) 12119 362,96

At 30 June 2008 RZEDNERA=TR 197450 1,998,740 493 5 1366003 10549 8358 (7.698) 3011672 6,685,006 - 113059 7815605

The general reserve represents the reserve arising from the
reduction of the nominal amount of the shares of the Company
(after the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each into 1 share in 2002) of HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid
up capital to the extent of HK$2.4 on each share of the Company in
2002.

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the group
reorganisation in 1992.

The capital reserve represents the amount arising from a bonus issue

of shares of a subsidiary of the Company by way of capitalising the
subsidiary’s retained profits.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E _—FF/NFANH =1 H ILFE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEB RemE
Profit before taxation MR A5 AT A 257,278 832,069
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation of property, M - BEREETE
plant and equipment 12,440 12,548
Amortisation of development costs for R RS 2 BB
systems and networks a3 713,070 470,654
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 2 #H 2,360 2,360
Impairment losses recognised for MAMEHERE
available-for-sale investments FrigER 2 BB R 1R 56,502 80,605
Impairment losses recognised for TREF AL 2
development costs for systems FRERANFTTER 2
and networks BB ETIE 436,488 =
Impairment losses recognised for pirE REAFEKR
deposits and prepaid development costs FrigEsR < BEE1E 245,310 -
Impairment loss recognised for interest N kNI E
in an associate FRiER 2 BIE K18 - 312
Impairment loss recognised for property, MYE - BB REE
plant and equipment FRHER 2 BB R 5,085 -
Gain on disposal of development ek Tl o
costs for systems and networks B Az Wik = (23,140)
Discount on acquisition of additional Y B B S N A
interest in a subsidiary BIMER 2N = (4,402)
Discount on deemed acquisition of AR AWEEHTE QA
additional interest in a subsidiary RESMERR 2 FT 40 (2,860) (6,463)
Gain (loss) on deemed disposal HRALEWNBRRZ
of subsidiaries iz (E518) (196) 465
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERAIHHERE
investments 2 Wa - (11,888)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB X
and equipment st Was (164) (2,004)
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE 258 6,781 7,484
Issue costs of convertible bonds AMRESFEITER - 2,130
Interest income FLEMA (8,577) (21,147)
Loss on fair value change of ARRESATER
convertible bonds BE) 2 A 2,282 32,829
Operating cash flows before movements LEES A 2 KE
in working capital BHenE 1,725,799 1,372,412
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEmAD (3Em) 4,985 (2,393)
Decrease (increase) in trade and JEWE 5 R H M ARR 2
other receivables A () 49,830 (127,883)
Increase in trade and other payables FERHE 5 REMBREZ 3N 153,937 17,858
Increase in warranty provision IRER AL 276 39
Decrease in customers’ deposits BPReRD (3,528) (4,137)
Cash generated from operations EEELEZIRG 1,931,299 1,255,896
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) BEiRE (BE&M) BEFEH 222 (9,186)
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded (paid) — ZRE (E4i4) Em=DE
IR 54 (44)
Net cash from operating activities KEEBFB 2R FHE 1,931,575 1,246,666
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT % &8l &ifi#i#

Sor the year ended 30 June 2008  #F —FFE/NFNJ] =1 HILFE

2008 2007
—E2EN\FE ZETAF
NOTE HK$°’000 HK$’000
Bt =t FExT FHET
Cash flows from investing activities REETBH BRSNS
Deposits and prepayments paid in BRRGRBLEZ
respect of development costs for FBERAZEMiRS
systems and networks RIERFHIE (2,052,804) (2,258,690)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BARHEERE - (519,688)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W RE P A 7] 32 (50,000) -
Acquisition of additional interest W RE PR A 7]
in a subsidiary BIMER - (13,122)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERKE (8,910) (9,540)
Contributions from minority shareholders LERE 2 HE - -
Refund of deposits paid in connection with IRIE R AR 2 BB
projects relating to development costs B R ERE
for systems and networks and acquisition PARKNE &
of investments - 327,600
Capital receipts from available-for-sale AHEEREM
investments B 437,310 358,899
Interest received BUFLS 8,577 21,147
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERIHEERE
investments Fif5 2 538 - 19,561
Proceeds from disposal of development costs  Hi & F &t & 4348 2 FIZE Ak AR
for systems and networks FriS 2 5038 - 140,400
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WEREE
plant and equipment FiG 2 508 364 2,870
Payments for development costs for systems Rt &84 2 FEA A
and networks R (319,800) (234,940)
Net cash used in investing activities REREFIFER 2588 (1,985,263) (2,165,503)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBH HERE
Net cash receipt from issue of convertible BT RIHRARE 5 PR £ %5
bonds (net of issue costs of HK$2,130,000) (E#k2,130,0008 T2
BITEA) = 60,270
Repayment of borrowings BRER (2,694) (229,721)
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRRIEE TS RIA - 290,440
New loans raised NESEZER 21,283 302,000
Dividends paid ERRE (41,140) (33,766)
Proceeds from exercise of subscription rights  1T{EREBRETS 2 FH 17,011 -
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BEXMTFLHERRZRE (42,340) (24,809)
Interest paid ERFHE (6,781) (7,484)
Redemption of convertible bonds BB rJ IR S (780) -
Proceeds received upon exercise of warrants  1T{ERRAERE B W 2 K8 82,091 -
Net cash from financing activities BB EBATSE S FE 26,650 356,930
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEFR IR FE (27,038) (561,907)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FReRASEFR
of the year 347,482 921,264
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes MERFH 2 2,468 (11,875)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ F#&IR S MRS EHE 322,912 347,482
Represented by B
Deposits, bank balances and cash R ROTBEERRS 350,728 347,482
Bank overdrafts RITHEX (27,816) =
322,912 347,482
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for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E _—FF/NFANH =1 H ILFE

GENERAL

The Company was originally incorporated in the Cayman
Islands but subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information Section
of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associate are set out
in notes 37 and 19 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the “HKASs”)
and Interpretations (“INT”) (hereinafter collectively referred

to as “new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007.
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC) - INT 10

Financial instruments: Disclosures

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

HK(IFRIC) = INT 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share
transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material effect on
how the results of the Group are prepared and presented for
the current and prior accounting years. Accordingly, no prior
year adjustment is required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain
information presented in prior year under the requirements
of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant comparative
information based on the requirements of HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first
time in the current year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early adopted the following new standards,

amendments and interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 &1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) - INT 12

HK(IFRIC) - INT 13

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14

HK(IFRIC) - INT 15

HK(IFRIC) - INT 16

o o & w N o=

Presentation of financial statements !

Borrowing costs !

Consolidated and separate financial
statements 2

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation !

Reclassification of financial assets ©

Vesting conditions and cancellations !

Business combinations 2

Operating segments

Service concession arrangements @

Customer loyalty programmes “

HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction @

Agreements for the construction of
real estate '

Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation ©

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008.
Effective from 1 July 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 B 7% & Bt
for the year ended 30 June 2008 #E —FENFNH =+ HIFFE

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is

on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The adoption of HKAS 27
(Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes

in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control, which will be accounted for as
equity transactions. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
30 June each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group'’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess
of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that

the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries is recorded at
historical cost and the excess of the carrying amounts of net
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition is recognised as
discount on acquisition and charged to consolidated income
statement.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary, at the date

of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising

from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated

is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivables
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant
licensing agreements are formally concluded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B % 5 Bt
for the year ended 30 June 2008 #FE —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFE

Income from certain available-for-sale investments where the
Group is contracted to receive a pre-determined minimum
sum over the period of the projects is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the investment in these available-for-sale investments. Income
from other available-for-sale investments are recognised
when the Group’s right to receive the distributions has been
established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised on a straight
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Costs incurred by the Group in establishing its
telecommunication networks include, among other things,
property and equipment, internally developed and acquired
software and the acquisition of required licenses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives after taking
into account their estimated residual value, using the straight
line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the
relevant leases or 50 years

Buildings 2% — 5%

Plant and machinery and

telecommunications networks  10% — 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33"/ %
Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, in which

case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease.

Impairment (other than goodwill, development costs
for systems and networks and financial assets)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset

is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for

the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and
at fair value respectively. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be

recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %58 B % 5 bk
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #F = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Deposits and prepaid development costs

Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects under
construction. Deposits and prepaid development costs are
transferred to development costs for systems and networks
when it is implemented for its intended use. Deposits and
prepaid development costs are stated at cost less impairment.

Development costs for systems and networks
Development costs for systems and networks are stated
at cost less amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Development costs for systems and networks represent all
direct costs incurred by the Group in setting up systems and
networks, including the cost of equipment, development cost
and subcontracting expenditure. Such assets are recognised
only if all of the following conditions are met:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset so that it
will be available for use or sale.

- its intention to complete the asset and use or sell it.

- its ability to use or sell the asset.

- how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can demonstrate
the existence of a market for the output of the asset
or the asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the
usefulness of the asset.
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- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the asset.

- its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the asset during its development.

Development costs that cannot fulfil the above conditions

are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred. Development costs for systems and networks which
are implemented for its intended use and fulfil the above
conditions are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives, subject to a maximum of five years.
Where the recoverable amount of development costs for
systems and networks has declined below their carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the decline
in value.

Development costs for systems and networks that are not

yet available for intended use are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment test is performed
at least annually.

An item of development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of

the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 f B % 5 Bt
for the year ended 30 June 2008 #FE —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFE

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one

of the two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried

at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less

any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories.

For available-for-sale debt investments with guaranteed

return, payments receivables each year for investments are
apportioned between income and reduction of the carrying
value of the investments so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
fair value.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5548k i 5k
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E —FF/NFNH =+ HIFFE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in the
number of delayed payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as

the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
income statement to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 f B % 5 Bt
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #F = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a

group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

The convertible bonds issued by the Group includes a liability
component, a conversion option, a call option and a put
option and an early redemption option. Convertible bonds
that will not be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments are financial liabilities with embedded
derivatives. Derivatives embedded in a financial instrument
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contract (the liability component) and the host contract is not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The convertible bonds (including the liability component, the
conversion option, the call option and the put option and

an early redemption option) as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each subsequent balance sheet date, the entire
convertible bonds will be measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue

of the convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

47

SEERFTHOMEEERBRATAREMRR]
Y2 BT BEARARMBEERBA
TRAZEEDE -

kT B A W BRE A AR EAES
R T B (A1 2 RIS -

BRAZORTIETEM G B B2 KA RIRE
BERESFES X2 75% - BEMETEE
SHRRREN TRV BB ERERFES
KEFEHRRE (A8 ) BIRBEIR 2 FIK -

TSR TR BB AR EAERER o

$‘¥l§’*ﬁ2—ﬁﬁﬂxﬂi% BEAERY ik
7 RBREERGEREFEOE - ATRRIE
#ZZD}HT\ NEER S RRXBETEHE 2K
ARBEATAZ T AGEHE  AIBARSITET
AZBBAE BELERRNMERETIEH
(BE#HD ) YTEEE - REALHRER
FEENMEERIEE  ZE82RNEBTAR
ZEITETAFERERITETE -

RINETERE - TRRER(BRERESRS
HBiE - REERREERIRETEOE) B s
BIEATFEBEMNMERSIIRZHEEE - RES
tm%;:a FTB AR R EH 1R A FEER
g AP EEZEHREEHNEERBEA
TR

—0—)30*

REITEER/ELATFEENERIR VKA
B AR ESFMEE 2 EER S E AR
TE iﬁgm)\ﬂ%°



CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - BA % i bt sk
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E —FF/NFNH =+ HIFFE

Subscription rights granted to the convertible bond holders
to subscribe for the ordinary shares of a subsidiary of the
Company are recognised at fair value on initial recognition
and will remain in subscription right reserve until the
subscription rights are exercised (in which case the balance
in the subscription right reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the subscription rights remain unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance in the subscription right
reserve will be released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon exercise or expiration of the
subscription rights.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and control of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate is
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group'’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group'’s

net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share

of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 f B % 5 Bt
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #F = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFE

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes income statement items that are
never taxable and deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where

the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the

asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit

or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of
equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes are charged as expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit schemes,
the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being
carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses which exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of
the Group’s pension obligations and the fair value of scheme
assets are amortised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the participating employees. Past service

cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight
line basis over the average period until the amended benefits
become vested. Any assets resulting from this calculation is
limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost,
plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contribution to the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %56 B % i i i
for the year ended 30 June 2008 #FE —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit cost (Continued)

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair
value of scheme assets.

Any assets resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contribution to the scheme.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units

to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. As
at both balance sheet dates, the carrying amount of goodwiill
was HK$36,795,000. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Development costs for systems and networks

(a) Estimated useful life
As at 30 June 2008, the carrying value of development
costs for systems and networks amounts to
HK$2,743,823,000 (2007: HK$2,137,057,000). The
estimated useful life of the assets reflects the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the
development.

(b)  Estimated impairment
Determining whether development costs for systems
and networks and deposits and prepaid development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flow expected to arise from
the continuing use of the assets and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. As at 30
June 2008, the carrying amount of development costs
for systems and networks and deposits and prepaid
development costs were HK$2,743,823,000 (2007:
HK$2,137,057,000) and HK$2,563,105,000 (2007:
HK$2,041,260,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %56 B % i B 5
for the year ended 30 June 2008 # % —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFZ

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4.

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale

investments

Determining whether available-for-sale investments are
impaired requires an estimation of future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of similar
assets. As at 30 June 2008, the carrying amount of available-
for-sale investments was HK$1,509,822,000 (2007:

HK$1,786,794,000).

A HEE Mz E AR ()

A AtHERE 2 fhEHRE

ErrHHEREROREAERGIBEZR
SRE  WIRENEEZRZMSEHREN
B R-ZTTN\ENA=1H AIHEERSE
ZBREE A1,509,822,000/8 T ( Z BT+ 4 :

1,786,794,000/47T) °

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. &I H
Categories of financial instruments SRITAZESR
2008 2007
—EENFE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 1,509,822 1,786,794
Loans and receivables B R EUERIR
(including cash and cash equivalents) (RiERS RReEHE)
— Trade and other receivables — W E B R EABBR IR 1,152,497 1,202,327
— Deposit, bank balances and cash —TFR - RITEFERRS 350,728 347,482
1,503,225 1,549,809
3,013,047 3,336,603
Financial liabilities BBaR’
Amortised cost [RE:£75 )N
— Trade and other payables —JEINE 5 R EABERR 248,931 87,291
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 250,265 229,781
— Other borrowings —HiEE 682 2,577
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 27,816 =
527,694 319,649
Financial liabilities at fair value AT EFABZEZ
through profit or loss B aE
— Convertible bonds — [ E A - 35,880
527,694 355,529
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for the year ended 30 June 2008 #FE —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFE

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade receivables, deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade payables and bank and other borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 30 June 2008
in relation to financial assets is the carrying amounts of those
assets stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only advance
credit to customers with good credit history. In addition,

the management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each balance sheet date, taking into account
of future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In

this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on a few
distributors. Receivables from top five distributors represented
approximately 88.6% of trade receivables at the balance sheet
date. In addition, the credit risk on guaranteed distribution
receivable is also concentrated on a few number of guarantors
of investments. Receivables from the top five guarantors of
investments represented approximately 22.1% of guaranteed
distribution receivables at the balance sheet date. The
management considers that there are no significant credit
risks due to the long and good credit history of these debtors.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group maintains approximately
HK$71,409,000 (2007: nil) of deposits with certain overseas
financial institutions. The management considers there are

no significant credit risks due to the long and good credit
history with these financial institutions. The credit risk on other
liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn

up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay.

REBECRBREEMS @ AEEHHESRE
CHETERREREEEERATHEZK
L PEAASEZEEW KRS RKB TS

W2 B -

TRHIIAEESBA B HBANES - 7
ENRAEESPURERME T M A ER
BERESIFIR -

Total Carrying
0-6 7-12 Over undiscounted  amount at
Interest rate months months 1year  cashflow 30 June 2008
AER RZBINE
BER  RA=tH
Gilk:S 0Z6fA  7Z12(8A 1L 2 ZIREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TET TR T

2008 ZBRN\E
Trade and other payables  FEfTE 5 R EMER N/A 248,931 = = 248,931 248,931
Bank borrowings BITHE 2.8 201,510 3,302 57,758 262,570 250,265
Other borrowings HffEE 9.0 523 14 205 742 682
Bank overdrafts BB 5.7 27,819 - - 27,819 27,816
478,783 3,316 57,963 540,062 527,694
Total Camying
0-6 7-12 Over  undiscounted amount at
Interest rate months months 1year cash flow 30 June 2007
AME RITTEE
ReR  RA=TH
M= 0Z61EA =128 150 E &3 ZEHEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT ThT TAT TART

2007 S 3
Trade and other payables  fEffE S REMEH N/A 87,291 - - 87,291 87,291
Bank borrowings BITEE 59 180946 53427 382 234,755 229,781
Other borrowings HfbfEE 8.0 2,042 14 752 2808 2577
Convertible bonds mkkES 1.0 - 18,860 - 18,860 35,880
270,279 72,301 1,134 343,714 355,529

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank borrowings and bank deposits. The Group
currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of
interest rate risk. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arises.
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The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings only, as management considers interest rates on
bank balances are not subject to significant fluctuations in
interest rates. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of balances outstanding at the balance sheet date was the
amount outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group'’s profit for
the year ended 30 June 2008 would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$1,391,000 (2007: decrease or increase by
HK$1,145,000).

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
(including intra-group current accounts) at the reporting date
are as follows:

AT BURE D ITE R BRITEEMAR 27
r%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#m HEBERBRITET
ZHREZNE KB 2 ZELTEK © TR
FNBEHEAREE R SEERBAFEAY
REE - RMEEETEA B AEDE R = @R
MR 2 50 F 2R - RREBEBHFNEZ
BEEEEEEL ZFHE -

i FI R 38 I ek 508 T+ B FTA E b AT 2 A
ERFTE  AEEHE-_ZTT/\FA=1
B IEFE 2 F % A 8 11 %Y 1,391,000/ 7T
(ZZZ5F B8 IN1,145,00087T) ©

EEERAFHEAZNERRY ERRFEANZ
F BEBEIM TIREEBHNEER -

ARFETHBABRAAINETEZ B
BEREE SAKEHEINERR -

RBEBE - SEERBLUINSHECEBIEE
EXEELAE ( RREERZRDER ) 2k
EELAT :

2008 2007

—EENE —EEF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE =N BE =L
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT FAT
Euro BT 5,381 167 6,455 1,187
Pound Sterling e 325 - 155 -
Macao Pataca YR PY 436 67 133 -
United States dollar ETT 513,688 20,172 259,114 37,411
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The Group currently does not engage in any foreign currency
hedging instruments. It is the Group’s policy to manage
foreign exchange risk through matching foreign currency
income with expense, and where exposure to foreign
exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will
be used.

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Euro and United States dollar. Under the pegged
exchange rate system, the financial exposure on exchange
rate fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar and United States
dollar is considered by the directors to be insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in Euro against each group entity’s
functional currency. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation

at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit where
Euro strengthen 5% against each group entity’s functional
currency. For a 5% weakening of Euro against each group
entity’s functional currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

ANEE B I EAEITINE LIRS o AEE—
EHRREBREIIMNERART HERERI
FERER - RRRERINERR - SEREE
ZERTA -

SEEBIZAEIINERBRREBIITRE
TC o IRBMEERKS - ERRABITHEET
X RE 2 R E BN - Rt W ERRGUR
EDHT ©

TRHAAHPEEERYB T LR SEER
REEHE 2 E R E 3N T 5% 2 BURE 5%
TIRENE R EZEE A BREINER BRI PR
RAMBREL R  ARKREEBYHINEER
BT REE BRI - MREDITEBIENAI
BHECARBENEBHEE - YRINEETES)
SRETE NI LB EH % o« AT EERSA
BT &SRB ERIEEETHES SRR 2 £
Tto BRULH S RERREERRZES% Al
BEENBRERRENEREE -

2008 2007

—EENE —TTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Euro BT 261 263

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

() Convertible bonds
The Group is exposed to equity price risk on the
convertible bonds issued by Kantone Holdings Limited
(“Kantone”) (see note 28). The management manages
this exposure by providing measures in the subscription
agreement to allow redemption of the convertible bonds
at the option of Kantone, see note 28 for details.

The convertible bonds issued by Kantone were either
fully converted or redeemed in 2008, hence management
considers that the Group is not exposed to price risk at
the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the balance sheet date.
If the share price of Kantone had been 5% higher, profit for the
year ended 30 June 2007 would decrease by HK$1,686,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of convertible bonds.
Conversely, if the share price of Kantone had been 5% lower,
profit for the year ended 30 June 2007 would increase by
HK$1,996,000 as a result of the changes in fair value of
convertible bonds.

(i) Available-for-sale investments
The Group is also exposed to price risk on its available-
for-sale investments. The risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments operating in the advanced technology
development industry sector. The Group has an
investment committee dedicated to monitor this risk.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis; and

. for an option based derivative, the fair value is estimated
using option pricing model (for example, the Binomial
Model, etc.).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities of the Group recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and services provided by the Group to outside
customers, licensing fees received and receivable and
distributions/ dividends received and receivable from the
Group’s investments in telecommunications and e-commerce
projects and strategic investments during the year.

(a) Turnover
The turnover of the Group comprises the following:

9]

6.

ST H &)
HREREEEERBEE)

BURXJE 010T
UTSREDMIHIREREE AEE 2 RANE
BEBRMEL o WEBRE L% BEZE=
TELEANA=THLEFEZSFEE TR
BEHF 2 N FEEZE MR 1,686,000/ 7T 18
R WEBRETKRSS  MEBEE-_TTLEFX
B=1+RIFEZEMNERRES 2 AFE
& E) M1 HN1,996,000/8 T °

@iy FAMEHERE
AEBTEHIHEEREZERR
B o sZERE EE R RELERR AR
ITHEBEEHRTA - REFEDKIIE
BELRECREERZAR

MBEERVBEER 2 A FEE

giﬁﬁé&ﬂﬁﬁi@%z&iﬁﬁ%ﬁ'ltﬂ775%
JE -

c UBEERVBAB(TEENETAR)
ZAFEERBMRRSAIITRAR
EEEAEE &

s HEIEERENZTAETA HAYE
B E BN (i Z B B B
A E)EH R -

EERBARENEERATR 2 HBEER
B HEREESRQATEERS -

B WA TR

EEBRFALNEERIABERHEER R
RERB 2 KRR ERFIEFE - B RER
ZEFER  URRAAEEREERETFH
FIEAZRERREIEREZBERREE AR
PR o

(a) &=
REEZ EEFERE TIISE

2008 2007

—EEN\F T LF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FHT

Sales of systems products SHERSEM 2,287,033 1,560,653
Rendering of services and TR ARG K R M AT

software licensing 1,167,512 1,441,768

Leasing of systems products HERGER 10,158 9,537

Guaranteed distribution income IREE D TRBA 114,556 111,067

Dividend income A& 2 WA 55,790 41,262

3,635,049 3,164,287
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For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into six main operating businesses — sales
of general systems products, provision of services
(including software customisation and provision of
e-lottery services) and software licensing, leasing of
systems products, investments in telecommunications
networks and projects, investments in e-commerce

RAFEER  AEBZEBRHR/NA

BEEEB—HE—RERER 12
IR (BRI EHEFEER
B RBMARTE  HERSER  BE
BEREBZRE  BEFHERAZE
B UERKARMRERAZEARZK
BEMEIRE - WERBDAKEEZDE

projects and holding strategic investments in advanced BRZ RERAE -
technology product development companies. These
businesses are the basis on which the Group reports its
primary segment information.
Investments
Salesof  Provision of intele-  Investments
general  services and Leasing communications in
systems software  of systems networks  e-commerce Strategic
products licensing products  and projects projects  investments  Consolidated
#HE-R RERHER HERG ERARR E7HE
RHER BHE Em BEZRE BEZRE REHRE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEn TR TEn TEn TER
Year ended 30 June 2008 HEZBENE
AAZTALEE
TURNOVER EXE
External and total revenue HMEERBNA 2,287,033 1,167,512 10,158 16,033 7,806 146,467 3,635,049
RESULTS ES
Segment result PEEE 11,767 131,741 4,993 2,940 6,663 70,244 288,348
Interest income FlghA 8517
(ain on deemed disposal of HRALENEAR
subsidiaries ey 196
Discount on deemed acquisition of i AWEHBAA
addltional inferest in a subsidiary ~ @E5MER 24740 2,860
Loss on fair valug change of ARESATER
convertble bonds 2858 (2,282)
Unallocated corporate expenses,  KAEARR
net - 58 (33,640)
Finance costs BB (6,781)
Profit before taxation BRaE 257,278
Taxation oo (2,063)
Profitfor the year TEERT 255,215
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~

i

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION (Continued)

CES Vsl -v

Y
11N

iy

<

¥

(b) Business segments (Continued)

(b) ¥(BHME#

Investments
Salesof  Provision of intele-  Investments
general  services and Leasing communications in
systems software  of systems networks  e-commerce Strategic
products licensing products  and projects projects  investments  Consolidated
#E-R RIEER BEZG EEAER ETHE
AHRER BiHsTE ER BRZRE BAZRE RHMRE &&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn Thn TEn Tn Thn Tén
As at 30 June 2008 RZZENERA=1H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NBEE 4,905,516 1,339,190 6,731 47,468 53,733 1,731,963 8,084,601
Unallocated corporate assets I WNGIF:S 361,558
Consolidated total assets GREEE 8,446,159
LIABILITIES Bk
Segment liabilties HEER 127,509 185,185 7,981 4,001 - - 324,676
Unallocated corporate liabiliies IRAAEE 305,878
Consolicated total liabilies GREER 630,554
OTHER INFORMATION RfrER
Capital additions of property, R T
plant and equipment ZETEN 4,498 4,106 306 - - - 8,910
Capital additions of systems 25 RS
and networks LETEN 319,800 - - - - - 319,800
Addtions of deposits and #eRENFRE
orepaid development costs A 2,052,804 - - - - - 2,052,804
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 274,171 453,260 439 - - - 721,870
Impaiment losses recognised for ~ SEATRLHERE
avallable-for-sale investments figaz nEER - - - = = 56,502 56,502
Impairment losses recognised for ~ SiZ5 R 4L
development costs for systems — ZERERAERER
and networks JRERE 165,565 270923 - - - - 436,488
Impaiment losses recognised HEERENRERA
for depostts and prepaid FRaRERE
development costs 99,560 145,750 - - - - 245,310
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. ‘BRBEMSBER#)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Business segments (Continued) (b) ¥EBHE#E)
Investments
Sales of Provision of in tele- Investments
general  services and Leasing - communications in
systems software of systems networks  e-commerce Strategic
products licensing products  and projects projects investments ~ Consolidated
HE—H RERHR HEZ4 ERAELR E17HE
Z0Em gk Em BEZRE BRRE REERE el
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Tén ThL Tén Thn T Tén Thn
Year ended 30 June 2007 BE-ERtE
ARZTHLEE
TURNOVER £
External and total revenue HIMEERARA 1560653 1,441,768 9,537 14,009 16213 122107 3,164,287
RESULTS 7 |
Segment result Lt 173,004 622,076 4,055 11,499 14,459 42376 867,469
Interest income HEMA 2,147
Impairment loss recognised for ~ FRBEAFZER
Interest in an associate iR AEEE (312)
Loss on deemed disposal of HHALENBAR
subsidiaries - (465)
Discount on deemed acquisition %8 AKENB A
of adaltional interest B)MER
in a subsidiary 2 6,463
Loss on fair value change of ARREFATER
convertiole bonds 29ER (32.829)
Unallocated corporate expenses,  KAEARRR
net - 58 (19,790)
Finance costs B (8614)
Profit before taxation B BATEH 832,069
Taxation jric] 917)
Proft for the year TER&T 822,898
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6. BEBMIBEER =
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Business segments (Continued) (b) EBAEE)
Investments
Sales of Provision of in tele- Investments
general  services and Leasing - communications in
systems software of systems networks  e-commerce Strategic
products licensing products  and projects projects investments  Consolidated
HER RARBR REZH B 72
FhER GfHRE Em BRZRE REZRE REERE e
HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000
THn TEL FAn Fhn TEL Fin FhR
As at 30 June 2007 RZBBLERA=TH
ASSETS gE
Segment assets PEEE 3,179,647 2,019,554 7,823 139173 149,329 1,800,599 7,296,125
Unallocated corporate assets AOMAREE 361,242
Consolicated total assets GRiGEE 7,657,367
LIABILITIES Bf
Segment liabilies AEEE 17,99 54597 8023 - = = 180,610
Unallocated corporate liabiliies ARAFEE 262,736
Consolidated total liabilties FRIEE 463,346
OTHER INFORMATION EftER
Capital additions of property, R T
plant and equipment ZEREN 5316 3783 iy - - - 9,540
Capital aditions of AHHERE
avalable-for-sale investments ZEREN = = = - - 512,014 512,014
Capital additions of systems 2GR
and networks ZEREN 234,780 160 - - - - 234,940
Additions of deposits and RERENRE
prepaid development costs RAZEN 2,258,690 - - - - - 2,258,690
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 27,055 457 962 545 - - - 485,562
Impaiment losses recognised for A HHERE
avallable-for-sale investments FrigR HERE = = = - - 80,605 80,605
Gain on disposal of development  HEZA LR
costs for systems and networks — BEEHAZ M 23,140 - - - - - 23140
Gain on disposal of EMRILERE
avalable-for-sale investments e = = = - - 11,888 11,888
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The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue by geographical market, by
location of customers, irrespective of the origin of
the goods/services:

() TREIIAEEZBEZAEET
58D ZWMAD (TmE R,/ R
T2 iR -

Revenue by
geographical segment
Year ended 30 June

RiEDEE D 2 WA
BEANA=THLEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiBx FHIT
People’s Republic of China R AR FAME

(the “PRC”") including (ThE]) -

Hong Kong and Macau BIEES KIRP 2,783,225 2,407,051
Europe B 597,404 535,796
Others Hih 254,420 221,440

3,635,049 3,164,287

The following is an analysis of the carrying
amount of segment assets, and capital additions
to property, plant and equipment, systems and
networks, interest in e-commerce projects and
telecommunications projects and strategic
investments in advanced technology product

(i) TREINAEBEIREEMTHET
BEDHBEEZREEDN - A
REREN(BEDE - BERE
& Rk ETEEEEK
BEER 2#E  UEEERRE
EMAZRARIZREMHRE) 2D

development companies, analysed by the i
geographical market to which the assets are
located
Carrying amount
of segment assets Capital additions
PEEEZREE BB
30.6.2008 30.6.2007 30.6.2008 30.6.2007
—EENEF —TTAHF —E2ENEF —ET+F
AA=+H ~A=+H AA=+H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FHET FHET
The PRC including FE - BiE
Hong Kong and BB REM
Macau 7,820,448 6,922,269 2,730,720 3,007,113
Europe BOM 135,939 138,981 6,520 7,692
Others HAh 128,214 234,875 102 379
8,084,601 7,296,125 2,737,342 3,015,184
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OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are interest earned on bank deposits
and balances of HK$8,577,000 (2007: HK$21,147,000) and
discount on deemed acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary of HK$2,860,000 (2007: HK$6,463,000). Included in
other income in the previous year was discount on acquisition
of additional interest in a subsidiary of HK$4,402,000. No such
income has arisen during the year.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF DEVELOPMENT
COSTS FOR SYSTEMS AND NETWORKS
In the previous year, the Group disposed of its interest in
certain systems and networks with an aggregate carrying
value HK$117,260,000 with sales proceeds amounted

to HK$140,400,000, resulting in a gain on disposal of
HK$23,140,000.

A

HEi R ABERITERREFMHRERZFE
8,577,000 L ( ZE T L F : 21,147,000 %
T0) ' AR B UREEHT B A R EEMERS 2 T
2,860,000/ 0 ( ZFZ+4F : 6,463,000/ 7T)
REZEMRABIEREN B A R BEIMERS 2
#19104,402,00078 7T AN G E W M E A BB IR
)\ o

XF  AEEHEERETERLPKRER
E{E A117,260,000 8 7T 2 # @  HEFENK
18 /3140,400,000/8 7T * B It &S H & =
23,140,000/ 7T ©

FINANCE COSTS 9. WBHA
2008 2007
—sBNEF —BELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFEANBEEEZRITR

wholly repayable within five years HifEE2F R 6,781 7,484
Issue costs of convertible bonds AR E 5 2 BATRCAN = 2,130
6,781 9,614
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2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at B FATH M S 15 -
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note (i) EE5M < (FEEd) 8,006 7,813
Staff costs excluding directors’ BIKA(TEEESHE)
remuneration 116,035 107,365
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AEFIETEI4E R (B HERIM)
other than directors’ (Note (ii)) (P Gi)) 7,269 7,757
Total staff costs B TR A 4858 131,310 122,935
Amortisation on: iy
Development costs for systems and R R A 2 REE KR
networks, included in direct (GTAEBEERKA)
operating expenses 713,070 470,654
Intangible assets, included in general EmEE
and administrative expenses (GEA—RRATH ) 2,360 2,360
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERREITE
equipment, included in general and GTA—RRITBZ )
administrative expenses 12,440 12,548
Total depreciation and amortisation e R Hm R 727,870 485,562
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT I & 5,740 4913
Cost of inventories recognised BERTEZRA 1,595,673 1,293,989
Impairment loss recognised for property, — st¥% - BE & RE
plant and equipment FTiER 2 BB & 18 5,085 -
Minimum lease payments paid under RRGEHECHE
operating leases in respect of: RARREE L
Rented premises HEmE 6,774 4,708
Machinery and equipment WS R R AE 5,010 4,325
Research and development cost B 3% $HiIT B B
expensed AR 10,242 10,033
and after crediting: REFA :
Net foreign exchange gain P 54 W o B 58 19,811 16,802
Rental income from leasing of: THE R Hies &
Plant and machinery and BEREME2
telecommunications networks AUWA 10,158 9,537
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREEZ
plant and equipment Wik 164 2,004
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEEREZ
investments e = 11,888
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Notes: FfsE -
(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments (i) EBRESHEEME2ER
Year ended 30 June 2008 BE-ZENEAA=THLEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
HER RIfRR RINER £k
ne HitER BHeke TR k]
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET THET
(Note)
i)
Name of executive directors HITESHSE
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok * [EpE Tt - 2,110 162 20 2,292
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * HRR 15 1,185 750 12 1,962
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * BEEE 10 831 661 15 1,517
Name of non-executive directors FHTEEHS
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight * Francis Gilbert KnightJE £+ 80 100 - - 180
Prof. Liang Xiong Jian # DR 100 100 - - 200
Prof. Ye Pei Da # EEXHYIR 100 100 - - 200
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley 5t 4 # 100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller HgkE 50 207 - - 257
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * Bt 10 774 402 12 1,198
465 5,507 1,975 59 8,006
Year ended 30 June 2007 HE-TTLE AZTRLFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
HFeRk BIfERR RN £2Hie
He Hitpfg7! BR &S STEIfR E]
HK$'00! HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
(Note)
i)
Name of executive directors HITESHSE
Mr. Paul Kan Man Lok * [EpE Tt - 2,110 162 20 2,292
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung * HRR K 15 1,126 710 12 1,863
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong * BANEE* 10 817 661 15 1,503
Name of non-executive directors FTESMA
Mr. Francis Gilbert Knight * Francis Gilbert KnightE £+ 60 100 - - 160
Prof. Liang Xiong Jian # DR 100 100 - = 200
Prof. Ye Pei Da # EEXHIR 100 100 - - 200
Mr. Frank Bleackley # Frank Bleackley 5t 4 # 100 100 - - 200
Mr. Terry John Miller HgkE 50 201 - - 251
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling * BERRat* 10 752 370 12 1,144
445 5,406 1,903 59 7,813
& The director is also a director of Kantone and * ZEZNRBBEEREGES([#

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK") both of which

BEEDZEE - MERRBEAEAR

are the listed subsidiaries of the Company. Alz EHHEARR -

é HERNREBIEE -

& The director is also a director of Kantone.

S REENREBEL2ES -

> The director is also a director of Digital HK.
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Notes: (Continued) MicE - ()
() Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments () HHESHEEML2ERN(Z)
(Continued)
The remuneration for non-executive directors comprises FRTEEC NS OREEFHRE REMB
directors’ fees and other emoluments which vary with the number & RIEFHAZZESHEmMBMT
of committees on which they serve. Al e
Note: The performance related incentive payment is discretionary Misk - IRITERRBERz RS BRIBMHEEY
as may be decided by the board of directors provided that FTREEFERTE  ERZFEENZ
the total amount of bonus payable to all the members of BEEGNEBZREBBETIERBEAE
the board of directors for such year shall not exceed eight ERRFELRE EFI8%

percent of consolidated profit after taxation of the Group.

Employees (=]
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2007: rEELEERFATEEREG(ZTEL
two) directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are F:MB)ARAES  HMEFERHR L
set out above. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining three X o AEFBEBR=FZ(ZTTLF : =R)K%
(2007: three) highest paid employees of the Group, not being a AT (LHEARRZES) 2BMES
director of the Company, are as follows: T
2008 2007
—EENEF —TT+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 4,872 3,980
Performance related incentive payments 2 T{ERIRE N2 113 255
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R A& FIET &I 495 617
5,480 4,852
Emoluments of these employees were within the following EREZMEN T THIEE :
bands:
Number of employees
EEAH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —RTF
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T —2,000,0007 7T 3 3
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Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

Bt ()

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRI BIGERK
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FH&T
Retirement benefit scheme contributions — [AIANSE B~ FRBH KT EIS N 2
to the Group’s defined contribution R AIET IR
scheme 947 1,265
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  [AIZAR &8~ 5B FEH RIS 4 2
to the Group’s defined benefit scheme  RAIEFIEHBIHE R 6,381 6,551
7,328 7,816
Defined contribution scheme ERMREE

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a retirement
benefit scheme covering a portion of their employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme. Where there are employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contribution payable by
the Group is reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no forfeited contributions
which arose upon employees leaving the scheme and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in the future years
(2007: nil).

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled all
eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory provident
fund (the “MPF") scheme. The retirement benefit cost of the
MPF scheme charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-administered,
funded pension scheme. The scheme provides defined pension
benefits related to service, and final earnings and capital sums
on death. Membership is optional for all staff paid monthly and
aged over 21 years.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified actuary
on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit credit
method are charged to the consolidated income statement.
Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for each year of
pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
scheme assets and the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out at 31 December 2005 by Ms.
Alison Bostock, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries, and were
updated to 30 June 2008 for the accounting reporting purpose.
The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the
results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on
investments and the rates of increase in salaries, pensions and
share dividends.
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Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

MicE - ()
(i) BARBEFFEMRGE)
EFERAG&I(E)

PRz EEEERRNAT

30.6.2008 30.6.2007

—EEN\F —RTF

~A=+H ~NA=+A

Discount rate ALIR & 6.60% 5.90%
Expected return on scheme assets TaEAZ T EI B E R 7.50% 7.20%
Expected rate of salary increase Bz e g 3.80% 3.10%
Future pension increase KRR ZBIKESTHE 3.80% 3.10%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2008 showed that the
market value of the scheme assets was HK$261,287,000 (2007:
HK$247,495,000) and that the actuarial value of these assets
represented 75% (2007: 70%) of the benefits that had accrued to

BHE_TTE\FENA=TRAZEEGHER
N AT BIEE 2 T{EA261,287,000%8 T (=
T T L 1 247,495,000/ ) © Mk EEE

ZEEBEARERBRNZ5%(—EF

members. 4 70%) ©
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement in REBBARKGTEINGEIBERTERZ
respect of the defined benefit pension scheme are as follows: SEMT
2008 2007
—BEN\F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHT
Current service cost RITARFGR A 3,449 3,388
Interest on obligation HEIEZ R B 20,489 18,929
Expected return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 BRI R (17,557) (15,766)
6,381 6,551
REFZHE T AHEK o

The charge for the year has been included in cost of sales.

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising
from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit

pension scheme is as follows:

EALE 2 EHEBMERAABIAEMEEZ
RO AGREERGSR - T :

Fair value of scheme assets

Present value of funded obligations
Net unrecognised actuarial (gain) loss

AAEIEEZ ATFEE
AEAPEZRE
REER 2 HEE (e ) B HRFRR

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
261,287 247,495
(346,394) (353,421)
(7,176) 9,941
(92,283) (95,985)
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Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
are as follows:

BisE : (&)
(i) BIRERETRIGRGE)
TR EI(E)

ERRENFREZREZEHMT

2008 2007

—EENE —TELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At beginning of the year FH) 353,421 344,682
Currency realignment MEH AR (4,879) 32,411
Service cost BRAGAA 3,449 3,388
Interest cost F B A 20,489 18,929
Actuarial gain TEE Wk (15,143) (32,587)
Contributions K 2,054 2,078
Benefits paid FrftAa (12,997) (15,480)
At end of the year F4E 346,394 353,421

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: EAEZ AT EEZSNT

2008 2007

—EENF —EETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At beginning of the year F1) 247,495 229,349
Currency realignment MEH AR (3,641) 22,076
Expected return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 TEH R ) 17,557 15,766
Actuarial gain (loss) TEHE e (E518) 4,186 (13,387)
Contributions T 10,832 9,171
Benefits paid FrftAa (15,142) (15,480)
At end of the year FiE 261,287 247,495

The fair value of plan assets and the expected rate of return at
the balance sheet date is analysed as follows:

Expected return

REHA 2 EEZ ATRERBHEDE
EAHMMT :

Fair value of plan assets

FE R E 3R SEEEZARER
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ETLEF —EBENF —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Equity instruments AT E 7.80% 7.90% 233,991 188,162
Debt instruments BHIA 4.80% 4.90% 26,645 59,097
Other assets Hi&EE 5.00% 5.50% 651 236
261,287 247,495

The weighted average rate of return of assets held is 7.50% (2007:
7.20%). The overall expected rate of return is a weighted average
of the expected returns of the various categories of plan assets
held. The assumptions used in determining the overall expected
return of the scheme have been set with reference to yields
available on government bonds and appropriate risk margins.

The actual return on plan assets was HK$22,354,000 (2007:
HK$2,379,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &z BA % i btk
for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E —FE/NFNH =+ HIFFE

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)  Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme (Continued)
The history of the plan for the current and prior period is as

MRt : ()

(i) BRABREEERGE)
ERBREBI(E)
I BN AR BRI T

follows:
2008 2007 2006
—SBAE  -TTLE  _TEAA
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FAT
Present value of defined benefit EREFNAEZRE
obligation 346,394 353,421 344,682
Fair value of plan assets FrEEEZ ATEE (261,287) (247,495) (229,349)
Deficit 54t 85,107 105,926 115,333
Experience adjustments on AEABEZBERE
plan liabilities (15,143) (82,587) (15,015)
Experience adjustments on FTEIEEZBEFE
plan assets 4,186 (13,387) 4,146
2008 2007
—EENF ZETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
The charge comprises: BIEE e 4E
Current tax: REFHIA :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH = -
Other jurisdictions Hibm)E R 2 T8 2,015 25
2,015 25
Under (over) provision in prior years: BEFEREETE(BHE)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFIEH 221 9,169
Other jurisdictions HttalktE 2 #1B (173) -
48 9,169
Deferred taxation (Note 29) RIERIE (FF7E29) - (23)
2,063 9,171

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong. No provision for
taxation has been made as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is
derived from Hong Kong. On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which includes the reduction

in corporate profit tax rate by 1% to 16.5% effective from the year of
assessment 2008-2009. Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFZE

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arises in, nor

ERREREZRE SR EEAREDENEE
FREBRE - TIERBEESL - RBAZR

is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not subject to BAFGEH - MEERFNEMRIEMER

Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit is either exempt from or

not subject to taxation in any other jurisdictions.

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 29.

R S BABMEMTIE o

RERIREFIAZ BT 29 -

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per AFEE 2B MRS B R 2 m MR
the consolidated income statement as follows: N
2008 2007
—EENE T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Profit before taxation MR A5 BT A 257,278 832,069
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBNETE16.5%TH 2
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) MB(ZZZLF : 17.5%) 42,451 145,612
Tax effect of profit exempted or not TR EL At B A b [ E A S AT 5k
subject to taxation in other jurisdictions ~ BERER 2 EH 2 FHIE L (47,172) (153,798)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DA gL B R HZ 2
for tax purposes His e 5,899 17,392
Tax effect of income not taxable BART B T 2 WA Z
for tax purposes M2 (8,289) (16,450)
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses BB RERIEE B 2
previously not recognised D% (11) (256)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRERBEBEBZ RIS 9,058 7,852
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETE 48 9,169
Others Efth 79 (350)
Taxation for the year REE 2 FIR 2,063 9,171
2008 2007
—EEBN\F TR F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Final dividend proposed in scrip form EUABRREFRIREFEEEN SR
equivalent to HK0.25 cent 0.2578 A\l 2 #E R R EARR 2
(2007: HK3.5 cents) per share, (ZZZEF : 3.58) -
with a cash option AlRIFERS 4,936 56,127
Interim dividend paid in scrip form AR B AR HEER
equivalent to HK2.45 cents TAR2 457l P EARR B
(2007: HK2.4 cents) per share, (ZZZEF  2.478(0) -
with a cash option ARIERS 41,360 38,003
Underprovision in prior year BEFEBRETR 1,816 2,556
48,112 96,686

The proposed final dividend for 2008 is calculated on the basis
of 1,974,500,267 shares in issue on 30 June 2008.

7
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The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is

based on the following data:

EARREEETRANTHE T BUERTE

2008 2007
—BBN\F —ETTEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Earnings attributable to equity holders LA EGREARRF 2
of the Company for the purpose of RARRAESEFAA
calculating basic earnings per share FEAG 5 A 190,456 626,818
Effect of options attached to convertible ~ —ZM{ B A & Al A E 5
bonds of a subsidiary Fbi iR 2 R & (602) (1,045)
Earnings for the purpose of calculating Nt BEEEEsRAR 2
of diluted earnings per share il 189,854 625,773
Number of shares (°000)
R E (LT BRED)
2008 2007
—E2ENF ZTTLEF
Weighted average number of shares N EERERERF 2
for the purpose of calculating basic IR B B
earnings per share 1,684,033 1,434,430
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: AT ¥ &i@% 2 BE# g2
Warrants AR 29,983 6,851
Weighted average number of shares ETE S SRR AT
for the purpose of calculating Z INREFRRAD
diluted earnings per share #H 1,714,016 1,441,281

The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not include
certain warrants of the Company for the year, as the exercise
price of these warrants was higher than the average market

price for these shares.

AEEBEERENBYIRREARTETZ
REHEE - AR ZERRERZTEES
REFIME -
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for the year ended 30 June 2008  #F = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 3 ~ WaE Mkt
Plant and
machinery
and tele- Furniture
Landand communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
i
THREF REGRSK BRREE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEL Thx TAT TE
cosT HRAE
A1 July 2006 R=ZF F+A—H 61,616 988,110 15,690 10,245 1,075,661
Currency realignment B A% 1,794 29,301 - - 31,095
Additions RE - 9,309 10 221 9,540
Disposals = (261) (12,134) = (835) (13,230)
At 30 June 2007 RZZEZt+E A=1H 63,149 1,014,586 15,700 9,631 1,103,066
Currency realignment B X R (231) (1,997) - - (2,228)
Additions RE - 8,088 822 - 8,910
Disposals HE - (2,361) 6) (2,354) (4721)
At 30 June 2008 RZEBNEXA=1H 62,918 1,018,316 16,516 7,217 1,105,027
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT ~ HrERWE
At 1 July 2006 i e Rl =! 22,548 960,689 15,498 9,529 1,008,264
Currency realignment A% 253 27,181 - - 27,434
Provided for the year FNEGE 1,702 10,442 78 326 12,548
Eliminated on disposals HERHR (59) (11,470) - (835) (12,364)
At 30 June 2007 RZZEZ+E A=1H 24,444 986,842 15,576 9,020 1,035,882
Currency realignment R AR (44) (2.401) - - (2,445)
Provided for the year FNEE 1,613 10,154 355 318 12,440
Impairment loss REFE - 5,085 - - 5,085
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - 2,161) 6) (2,354) (4,521)
At 30 June 2008 R-ZENEXA=1A 26,013 997,519 15,925 6,984 1,046,441
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 30 June 2008 R-ZBNEXA=1A 36,905 20,797 591 293 58,586
At 30 June 2007 RZZEZt+E A=1H 38,705 27,744 124 611 67,184

PAGE 73



CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS s BA % i btk
for the year ended 30 June 2008 #FE —FE/NFANH =+ H IFFE

2008 2007
—EEBN\F TR F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
The carrying values of the Group’s REE 2 Y FERERREE
property interests comprise: BE
Freehold properties held outside REBEBAINERIFE Z KA
Hong Kong KEME 16,751 17,131
Leasehold properties: R
Held in Hong Kong REBFE
- long leases —RHEIEY 13,363 14,983
— medium term leases — R HRRRAY 3,332 2,930
Held outside Hong Kong RBEBAINEEIFE
—long leases —REREA 302 292
— medium term leases — R LY 3,157 3,369
36,905 38,705

The Group leases equipment to customers on operating

AEERELTHEGREERY TEP - A/

leases terms. The carrying value of such equipment, which
is included in plant and machinery and telecommunications
networks, is as follows:

BMZEREDAREBEERESHL

A T

2008 2007

—BENF e =

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHTT

Customer equipment at cost BN - REAE 99,110 100,505
Less: Accumulated depreciation B BEHTE (97,696) (99,004)
Carrying value AREE 1,414 1,501

At 30 June 2008, certain land and buildings of the Group with
a carrying value of HK$12,636,000 (2007: HK$12,915,000)
were pledged to a bank as security for banking facilities
granted to the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the directors had
determined that full impairment amounting HK$5,085,000 was
to be made for the property, plant and equipment in Brazil in
view of its decline in value in use.

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant
and equipment as the allocations between the land and buildings
elements cannot be made reliably.
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2008 2007
—EENE ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
COST REAE
At beginning of the year F4) 3,334,755 2,475,932
Currency realignment M 5 B 154 117)
Additions NE 319,800 234,940
Disposals HE - (171,600)
Transferred from deposits Beke 1,436,370 795,600
At end of the year Fs 5,091,079 3,334,755
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERRE
At beginning of the year F9) 1,197,698 781,384
Provided for the year INEFERAE 713,070 470,654
Eliminated on disposal HE RE L 6H - (54,340)
Impairment losses recognised BRERBEEE 436,488 -
At end of the year FHh 2,347,256 1,197,698
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At end of the year Fs 2,743,823 2,137,057

Development costs for systems and networks include all direct
costs incurred in the setting up and development of systems
and networks. The Group’s development costs for systems
and networks (other than those that are not yet available for
intended use) are amortised over the estimated useful lives of
a maximum of five years.

The management conducted a review of the Group’s
development costs for systems and networks in light of

the current market condition and determined that certain
development costs for systems and networks were impaired
based on the estimated recoverable amounts with reference
to their values in use. The value in use were determined
based on the estimated future cash flows discounted at a
rate of 10% per annum. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$436,488,000 have been recognised.
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for the year ended 30 June 2008 ~# % —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFZ

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generating unit (‘CGU”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

EBA G 2 B E DR D ECE TR
REREBAGZEREM((FREM]) - B
BZREED DB

2008 & 2007
ZEENER
—BBLHF
HK$°000
FTEx

Provision of e-lottery services RHEFHERDS

36,795

For the year ended 30 June 2008, management of the Group
determines that there was no impairment of its CGU containing
goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs
during the period. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for
goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets and projected for the next four years
and discounted at a rate of 10% which reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. No impairment loss was considered necessary.
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for the year ended 30 June 2008 #FE —FE/\AFNH =1 HIFFE

License
rights
ST
HK$'000
FHT
COST 5%
Balance at 1 July 2006, 30 June 2007 AZEBERNFLA—B ZEEEFANA=THRK
and 30 June 2008 ZEENFAA=THZ&H 11,800
AMORTISATION e
Balance at 1 July 2006 RZZETRFLtA—Bz&E# 1,770
Charge for the year FNEH 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2007 RZZETLFNA=THZ&H 4,130
Charge for the year FNEH 2,360
Balance at 30 June 2008 RZZTNFNA=THZ#&#% 6,490
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 30 June 2008 R=_ZTENFA=+H 5,310
At 30 June 2007 RZZTEFAA=TH 7,670

The license rights for provision of e-lottery businesses were
acquired as part of a business combination in previous years.
The license rights have definite useful lives and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the right granted or 5
years, whichever is shorter.

RBEFE  ARACRBRHETREEER
ZEIFRIERER A Z 8D - BIFEAR
ERRFEH - WRATRERN 2 AR EF (AR
R ) A B SRS -

2008 2007
—EENEF ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost, BA T & HIR ARGt 2 3E L
in respect of: fRARFES
— Interest in e-commerce projects —REFHEER 2= 104,410 104,410
— Interest in telecommunication projects ~—RE(FEEH 2 #Ex= 34,974 34,974
— Others —Efth 862,545 813,143
Impairment loss recognised EER 2 REER (373,781) (317,279)
628,148 635,248
Unlisted debt securities with guaranteed ~ A TS BABRERHRZ
return, in respect of: JEEMEBES
— Interest in e-commerce projects —REFEEEE 2w 377,750 377,750
— Interest in telecommunication projects ~ —RE(FEE 2 360,201 360,201
— Others —Hfth 1,553,832 1,386,394
Capital receipts from the investment BE 2 BN (1,410,109) (972,799)
881,674 1,151,546
1,509,822 1,786,794
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The unlisted debt securities with guaranteed return represent
the Group’s investments in certain securities which have
guaranteed a pre-determined return to the Group over a
fixed period of time. The pre-determined returns are non-
interest bearing and are denominated in United States dollar.
Payments receivable each year for investments with pre-
determined return are apportioned between income and
reduction of the carrying value of the investments so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return. The pre-determined
sums will be received for a period of 5 years by half-yearly
instalments and are discounted at the effective interest rate of
10% per annum.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments

in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated outside Hong Kong. They are measured at cost
less impairment losses at each balance sheet date because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year, the directors of the Company reviewed the
carrying amount of the unlisted securities in light of the current
market condition with reference to the financial results and
business operated by the investees. The directors identified
an impairment loss of HK$56,502,000 (2007: HK$80,605,000)
estimated based on expected cash flows projection from such
investments.

BRER®R I EDRBEESFEANRERE T
REFEFHRREEFRBERE LR EH
ZIKE o BELBAMSENE - WARTTAE
1B - SFIREE D IHEYIE 2 FIRT D ER
BREBARREREEZRE - ARREEZ
EHOHE - BESERNSFREAGFFD
HAWRER - IR T EF10% 2 BEREAREER -

FEEMBRAREENEBAIMEE MR Z
AIAEBBABITZHFLTRABSZ2RE - %
EREANSHERARKARERERRTE
ARz A FEEGESEREAN - AR
REER AR S EEAFEE -

KEE ARRESRBRIMRILBEREY
RV EERFEGEERMIELMEFZRE
HE - EERBEZSREZEBHRRS =
fhEHRE 518 A56,502,000/8 T ( ST+ ¢
80,605,000/ 7T) °

2008 2007

—EBENF —ERAF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRRG - FREKAE 31 31
Impairment loss recognised BEHER 2 R EEE (31) (31)
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Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2008 are as RZZBZNERB=1TH  KEEZHBERA
follows: ST

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued capital directly
Name of company incorporation held by the Company Principal activities
EAREEFEZ
REER SR 32 3tk B EBITRAEELH FEXEH
Belcher Technology Samoa 31% Provision of software
Limited EETES consultation and the
development of
software systems.
The business has not
yet been commenced
during the year.
TR R A R
BAEBHAFAR -
Impairment loss was recognised based on the estimated BB TR E & N Bl 2 FERIRRIR IR € m
recoverable amount of the associate which was determined by TRt AI B & BB REAE T ARER

projected discounted cash flows from the associate.

During the year, the management conducted a review of the RER EREEREBAMAHAEEZ RS
Group's deposits and prepaid developments costs in light R B R A EITER - Wik Et Al dE
of the current market condition and determined that certain CHARELEREZFRER  UEEET
deposits and prepaid developments costs were impaired Re RFENRERARZRE - FEREETIRE
based on the estimated recoverable amounts with reference BETARRIREMIBFFEA0%IRMEE °
to their values in use. The values in use were determined It - REEE D R A245,310,000/ 7T ©

based on the estimated future cash flows discounted at a
rate of 10% per annum. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$245,310,000 have been recognised.
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2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Raw materials R 13,675 11,901

Work in progress ER 3,212 2,277

Finished goods SRk 8,577 16,271

25,464 30,449

2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 3K 464,447 448,683

Guaranteed distribution receivables FEYURE D K 267,553 261,050
Advance to suppliers and other TR R RIE K

receivables FEUR EAthBR SR 420,497 492 594

1,152,497 1,202,327

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding its AEBFEBHEFETHBZEEEE - B

trade customers dependent on their credit worthiness, nature
of services and products, industry practice and condition of
the market with credit period ranging from 30 to 180 days. The
guaranteed distribution receivables, advance to suppliers and
other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
payable on demand.

The aged analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date is
as follows:

BREZER BRERERZME  TRHEE
kMG ERAmGTFEENFI0EIS0B ZEE
Hl o RUIRFB DR - T AL /B 108 K B U L
fhBRFR TV EIEHR « N B R F IR B REER T

e
N

FEUE ZERFNRE BHIZ RO

2008 2007

—BENF —BTAF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

0 - 60 days 0—60H 334,465 319,667
61 -90 days 61—90H 120,415 122,709
91 - 180 days 91—180H 7,536 1,149
> 180 days >180H 2,031 5,158
464,447 448,683

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential

customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.

Limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history.

80

REREFRFFEPH - NEEMERHEE R
BB eMEERP L EEERRATERTZ
FEELR - BTFEFLRES2EZRERESR
SETTRE MR -



stE R AR A R A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 f B % 5 Bt
for the year ended 30 June 2008 #E —FE/NFNH =+ HIFFE

Included in the Group'’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,031,000 (2007:
HK$5,158,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
age of these receivables is ranged from 180 days to 320 days
in both years.

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 320 days
because historical experience is such that receivables that are
past due beyond 320 days are generally not recoverable.

The trade and other receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

AEBZEWE SRR EHBIFRRAERLLY
42,031,000 7T ( ZF T F : 5158,000/8
L) ZfEE - ZRERREAREE - BA%
EARBZEGEEHREESEREE - AEEBE
HREEHFEEMNERR - RMEFER -
ZERWAER 2 FRE#RINT180H 23208 °

RBBELBEI20H A L2 EUKIRR—R A
AEE - RAREED SHAARINE20H N E2
FEUAR KA 2 BB -

RSB ERAEGE N2 ERHEZ E
WE 5 & EARARR#HFIAT -

2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

United States dollar E7T 699,095 700,928
2008 2007

—EENFE ZETF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Interest bearing deposits Bt BAFRK 228,671 303,969
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRES 122,057 43,513
350,728 347,482

The Group’s deposits, bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

REBEZFR  RITEFRES - AHEEEE
ERMERBIINZTEEE - ZHWT

1A=

2008 2007

—EEN\F ZTTAF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHT

United States dollar ETT 109,190 61,621
Hong Kong dollar BT 829 8,199
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR 36 85}
Others HAth 4,162 754
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DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH
AND BANK OVERDRAFTS (Continued)
Deposits, bank balances and cash (Continued)

The deposits, bank balances and cash comprise short-term
deposits with maturity of three months or less and cash held
by the Group. The deposits carries interest at an average rate
of 1.3% (2007: 0.1%).

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$4,056,000 (2007:
HK$4,033,000) were denominated in RMB which is not freely
convertible currency in the international market. The exchange
rate of RMB is determined by the Government of the PRC

and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to

exchange restrictions imposed by the Government of the PRC.

Bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts carry interest at an average rate of 5.7%.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 30 June 2008, the balance of trade and other payables
included trade payables of HK$147,847,000 (2007:
HK$14,446,000). The aged analysis of trade payables at the
reporting date is as follows:

7k ~ BATH R LBl RBRITEX

ER - SRBOEFERES (S

TR BOIEERESEEAEEBE 2R =
BAKARE I RBERRBE - TR
ZFHFIREIIE(ZTZTLE  01E) °

4,056,000/ 0 ( Z T4 : 4,033,000/87T) 2
HARITEFERIBEUAREE  MARKE
WIERBBEMHEEHLRZEY - ARBZE
KR \REMBBFETE - BPEARL
NEEHZEESZPEARENERTE R
ZHINEE BIFTARMR o

RITEX
RITEXZ FHERRETE °

WEAT & 5 B H Al HR K
R-ZBZN\EFEXA=1+H BNESREMBIE
R AERRBIE147 847,000 L ( ZTZT£F ¢
14,446,000 7T ) 2 FEN B SRR - ERNE SR
FRRE B2 BRI ¢

2008 2007
—EENE ZETEHF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
0 - 60 days 0—60H 9,419 10,080
61 -90 days 61—90H 28,067 644
91 - 180 days 91—180H 107,419 1,111
> 180 days >180H 2,942 2,611
147,847 14,446
The credit period on purchases of goods is ranged from 30 BEEY 2 EEHNT30%E60H °
days to 60 days.
WARRANTY PROVISION 25. DRAEHA
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
At beginning of the year F4 1,860 1,683
Currency realignment b 5 AR 147 138
Provided during the year FANERE 2,798 2,492
Utilised during the year FREEA (2,669) (2,453)
At end of the year Fs 2,136 1,860
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The warranty provision represents the management'’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior experience
and industry average for defective products.

RERBEEEERRBELRRENHFR
BERZEEHE  RIEREKRE T 212
AREIHMEAEEE EIED 2 RERTE o

2008 2007
—EENEF —ZT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHET

Bank borrowings comprise the following:  $R{TEERETFIEHA
Bank loans (Unsecured) RITE R (BIEIH) 249,893 228,610
Mortgage loan (Secured) RIBEF(BHE) 372 1,171
250,265 229,781

Included in the Group’s balance above were bank borrowings
of HK$372,000 (2007: HK$1,171,000), which were secured
by the Group’s land and buildings with carrying value of
HK$12,636,000 (2007: HK$12,915,000).

AEBE LB BIERASENEREEDERS
12,636,000 7L ( Z T4 : 12,915,000/87T)
2 i RIEFEE IR 2 $R1T1E E 372,000/ T
(ZZEZT 4 : 1,171,000/87T) °

2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank borrowings bear interest at BRHRIMSMNEFEZ
prevailing market rates and are RITEEZERHMT
repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year BB KA —F R 201,313 229,408
More than one year A —FER A E
but not exceeding two years 4,647 373
More than two years HRBREER R F R T E]
but not exceeding five years 44,305 =
250,265 229,781
Less: Amount due within one year B —FREIEWE S E
shown under current liabilities MEBEECSHE (201,313) (229,408)
Amount due after one year —FREH 5 48,952 373

The above bank borrowings bear variable interest at an
average rate of 2.8% (2007: 5.9%).
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OTHER BORROWINGS 27. HAbfEE
2008 2007
—E2ENF ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The other borrowings represent block fbfg B RITHER
discounting loans and are payable FURFHT ¢
as follows:
Within one year R—FAEE 489 1,861
More than one year —FERME
but not exceeding two years A5 Ef 193 506
More than two years HBBRE ER=4F
but not exceeding three years EE - 210
682 2,577
Less: Amount due within one year W —EREERILIIE
shown under current liabilities ik == = (489) (1,861)
Amount due after one year —F & EEZIE 193 716
The above other borrowings bear variable interest at an A EERTRMES - SRR RE
average rate of 9% (2007: 8%). (ZZZTtF : 8F) »
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 28. AHBRAE SR
HK$’000
FHT
As at 1 July 2006 RZZEZRFEA—H 18,219
Currency realignment b 5 SRR 30
Issue of 1% convertible bonds BITFE BN EARRES 62,400
Issue of subscription rights BT (2,789)
Change in fair value during the year FARTEEE 32,829
Converted during the year FRHG (74,809)
As at 30 June 2007 RZZZELFA=TH 35,880
Currency realignment M 5 R (31)
Change in fair value during the year FARTEEZD) 2,282
Converted during the year FRHMR (37,351)
Redeemed during the year FRER (780)

As at 30 June 2008

RZZEZNFA=1H

The convertible bonds were convertible at any time up to
one week prior to 1 April 2008 and thus classified as current

liabilities.
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On 1 April 2005, Kantone, a 51% (2007: 51%) owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement of Kantone”) with
an independent third party (the “Bondholder of Kantone”)
for the subscription of an aggregate principal amount of

up to US$24,000,000 1% convertible bonds due 2008 (the
“Convertible Bonds of Kantone”) issued by Kantone. The
principal terms of the Convertible Bonds of Kantone were as
follows:

(@  The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds of Kantone may be converted at the option of the
Bondholder of Kantone in whole or in part into shares
of HK$0.1 each in Kantone at any time from the date
of issue of the Convertible Bonds of Kantone up to
one week prior to 1 April 2008, the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds of Kantone, at a price equal to either
125% of the average of the closing prices per share for
the 30 consecutive business days immediately prior
to the date of the Subscription Agreement of Kantone,
subject to adjustment (the “Fixed Conversion Price of
Kantone”) or 93% of the average of any five consecutive
closing prices per share as selected by the Bondholder
of Kantone during the 30 consecutive business days
immediately prior to the date on which notice of exercise
of the bondholder is received by Kantone (the “Floating
Conversion Price of Kantone”), provided that both the
Fixed Conversion Price of Kantone and the Floating
Conversion Price of Kantone shall not be less than the
par value of Kantone’s shares.

(b)  The Convertible Bonds of Kantone bear interest at the
rate of 1% per annum and interest will be payable bi-
annually in arrears in June and December in each year.

(¢)  Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the Convertible Bonds of Kantone will be
redeemed at 100% of the principal amount at maturity.

(d) The Convertible Bonds of Kantone may be early
redeemed at the option of Kantone subject to certain
conditions set out in the Subscription Agreement of
Kantone.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement of Kantone, Kantone
issued Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of US$8,000,000 in April 2005; the Bondholder of Kantone had
an option to require Kantone to issue additional Convertible
Bonds of Kantone of up to US$8,000,000 (the “Call Option”)
within a defined period; and Kantone was also granted an
option to issue and to require the Bondholder of Kantone

to subscribe an aggregate principal amount of Convertible
Bonds of Kantone of up to US$8,000,000 (the “Put Option”)
within a defined period.
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On 23 August 2006, the Bondholder of Kantone exercised the
Call Option and Kantone issued additional Convertible Bonds
of Kantone of US$8,000,000.

As the conversion price was not fixed and the conversion
option of the Convertible Bonds of Kantone would not result in
settlement by the exchange of a fixed amount for fixed number
of equity instruments, the conversion option was regarded as
a derivative.

The Convertible Bonds of Kantone included the liability
component and embedded derivative (including the
conversion option, the Call Option and the Put Option and an
early redemption option).

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds of Kantone at 30 June 2007 was determined based
on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the expected borrowing rate of Kantone of
HIBOR plus 1.9%.

The fair value of the conversion option and redemption option
embedded was calculated using the Binomial model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

R-BZXENA-+=R " FREFFAA
1TE RN B B 1TEIN,000,000ETT 2 F
BORRES -

RN REWIEE - MBEBABERES KL
BRI EEBIREE SRR NEEH A Z KA
TE  SOUBRERERITETA -

BRABMEESEERAESI RASITETA
(BIEEME BB REIIETEEERE
) e

R-ZZTLFRA=+H  BFRAUAKESZ
BEBSZAFEETIREMGT RRRERIEZ
BRRPEENEEBRITRERSMN1.9E
B 2 BUEHE

NEZ ABEREOEZ A FEENL R
BEEEAGE - ZEAPRBENT

30 June 2007
ZETEFANA=TH

Stock price A& E
Exercise price 1TEE
Expected volatility TEEDR I8
Maturity life FI| R 4F HA
Risk-free rate EE AR
Expected dividend yield TEEAR S %

HK$0.76/5 7T
HK$0.38447 T
40%

0.76 yearsf
4.10%

5%

The fair value of the Put Option in the prior year were
calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

Rt AT EENZER R AR
4 o HEAFBEIENT

30 June 2007
ZETEFARA=TH

Underlying asset price HEEEBR
Exercise price 11EE
Expected volatility TEHERIR &
Maturity life S HREEHR
Risk free rate £ [ B A 2
Expected dividend yield LSRR

HK$73,730,000/% 7T
HK$62,240,000/% 7T
11.1%

0.92 years®

4.10%

1%
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In 2005, Kantone, under the Subscription Agreement of
Kantone, had granted to the Bondholder of Kantone an
additional right to subscribe for up to 30,437,073 new shares
in Kantone at a subscription price of HK$0.3844 per share,
exercisable until 1 April 2008 (the “2005 Subscription Rights”).
In 2006, Kantone had granted an additional right to the
Bondholder of Kantone to subscribe for up to 30,347,707 new
shares in Kantone at a subscription price of HK$0.3844 per
share, exercisable until 1 April 2008 (the “2006 Subscription
Rights”).

As the 2005 Subscription Rights and 2006 Subscription

Rights granted to the Bondholder of Kantone would result in
settlement by the exchange of a fixed amount for fixed number
of equity instrument, the fair value of the 2005 Subscription
Rights and 2006 Subscription Rights granted was recognised
in equity as subscription right reserve on initial recognition.

The fair value of the 2005 Subscription Rights and 2006
Subscription Rights at the date of grant was calculated using
the Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

REZZZTHE  REFERENE  FEER
FEBESFAE AEIMERN - UARBEESR
0.3844 7 TR i85 % 30,437,073 & B Z A%
7 BEAEFAIR ST N\FMUA—B= 2
TE([2005RHEE]) - RZZTTRF - 7@
METEBESSE ABIMNEF - UREES
[%0.3844 & 7T + R E830,347,707 R F i 2 ¥ A%
% ZEFATR =TT \FMA— Bk ZRI1T
#([2006:R5%#]) °

AR FERESREA A 2200538 % %2006
RBESER AT SERXMNETHERAT
A B L2005 K 2006 REE 2 A
FEERGEREERANERSRBEMRF
e

20053 B 220063 BN IR H A 2 A EE
LB EERNAE - ZEXFTASE
T

2006 2005

Subscription Subscription

Rights Rights

200631 200535

Stock price % f& HK$0.4275 7T HK$0.33/8 7T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$0.3844/%5 7T HK$0.3844/8 7T
Expected volatility TR 8 40% 40%
Maturity life ZI| B 4F BR 1.61 years& 3 yearsF
Risk-free rate [ B R 2R 3.88% 3.57%
Expected dividend yield TRHEAE S = 5% 5%

During the year, US$2,300,000 (2007: US$5,700,000) of the
issued Convertible Bonds of Kantone were converted into
46,590,000 (2007: 115,740,000) shares of Kantone of HK$0.1
each at a price of HK$0.3844 (2007: HK$0.3844) per share.

In addition, US$100,000 (2007: Nil) of the issued Convertible
Bonds of Kantone were redeemed by Kantone during the year.
At 30 June 2008, no Convertible Bonds of Kantone remained
outstanding.
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The following is the deferred taxation liability recognised and

movement thereon:

ERREEHBABRMEESHIIAT

Accelerated for
depreciation

IR E

2008 2007

—EE)N\F ZTTLF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Balance at beginning of the year FYEEH 149 206
Currency realignment [ 5 R 8 (34)
Movement for the year (Note 11) NEEZEE) (FIFE11) - (23)
Balance at end of the year FREEERS 157 149
At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses REER  AEEBERPACHREEELD

of approximately HK$327,189,000 (2007: HK$272,353,000)

available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset 7T)

has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These tax losses may be carried forward infinitely.

327,189,000/ L (ZEZT L4 : 272,353,000/
- AT VR EE B 1R 2 E F o
% 2m IR -
ERIB RN ER AR

BN EETER A
RIRETRIREE ° It

Number
of shares Amount
ROEE Ex]
'000 HK$'000
WA AR FET
Authorised share capital of HK$0.1 each: BREECIBTIEERE :
Balance at 1 July 2006, 30 June 2007 RZZERFtH-R ZZTLF
and 30 June 2008 NAZTERZZEN\FAA=THZEH 30,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital of BREEIBTZEBETREARRA -
HK$0.1 each:
Balance at 1 July 2006 Zﬁ/ﬁtﬁ =l 23 1,314,201 131,420
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2007 Warrants %ﬂ% TTHERREZ M BTG 245,855 24,585
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2008 Warrants ﬁﬁf?@\%ﬁﬁﬂg & mBE1TRG 5,585 559
Issue of shares as 2006 final scrip dividend BIIROGIER NERHBEIARA S 22,337 2,234
Issue of shares as 2007 interim scrip dividend BIRGIER-ZZZLETHEURKE 15,646 1,564
Balance at 30 June 2007 and 1 July 2007 RZFT+FRA=THK
el S s = P 1,603,624 160,362
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2008 Warrants 116 =TT N\ FRAREEM BTG 59,314 5,932
Issue of shares upon exercise of 2009 Warrants 118 =TT NFRREF M LT G 10 1
Issue of shares as 2007 final scrip dividend BIRGIER-ZZEZLERPEUBRKE 25,241 2,524
Issue of shares as 2008 interim scrip dividend BIRGIER=ZZZN\EHHSUBRKE 18,311 1,831
Issue of shares on acquisition of a subsidiary BATRGAKE B AR 268,000 26,800
Balance at 30 June 2008 RZZZNFAA=THZ&H 1,974,500 197,450
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During the year, the following changes in the share capital of
the Company took place:

(@)  During the year, 59,314,088 shares and 9,371 shares
of HK$0.1 each were issued at HK$1.38 and HK$1.6
per share respectively as a result of the exercise of the
2008 Warrants and 2009 Warrants (as defined under the
section headed “Warrants” below) of the Company by
the warrantholders;

(b)  InJanuary 2008, 25,241,398 shares of HK$0.1 each were
issued at a price of HK$1.47 per share upon election
by shareholders to receive shares in the Company in
lieu of the 2007 final dividend in cash pursuant to the
scrip dividend scheme as detailed in a circular dated 17
December 2007;

(c) InJune 2008, 18,311,212 shares of HK$0.1 each were
issued at a price of HK$1.15 per share upon election by
shareholders to receive shares in the Company in lieu of
the 2008 interim dividend in cash pursuant to the scrip
dividend scheme as detailed in a circular dated 15 May
2008;

(d)  The Company issued 268,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each as part of the consideration for acquisition of the
entired issued share capital of Big World International
Limited (the “Big World”), see note 32 for more details.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in issue in all respects.

On 23 October 2006, the Company proposed a bonus issue
of new warrants (“2008 Warrants”) to subscribe for shares
equal to 20% of the issued number of shares of HK$0.1 each
on 27 February 2007, to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of members on 22
November 2006. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
on 22 November 2006, 316,478,617 units of 2008 Warrants
were issued to the shareholders of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$1.38 per share of HK$0.1 each of the
Company as a result of the bonus issue of new warrants. The
2008 Warrants expired on 7 March 2008.
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(@ FAN - BRBREIHEATERAF
Z_EEN\FRBREBER=ZZTNFR
RiEE(ERR T X RREE]—F) -
#tE 59,314,088 1% 129,371 iy & I E &
0.1BTZRNE D RIZETIR1.38E LK
1678 T 2 BIE T IAZEST

by RZZTZENF—A BRREERE=-FT
THFE+ZA+ERAZBRATFIRZ A
BAEEE  LAQRRMREBRS W
DT LFERARER - ARRERE
f&1.478 70 2 (B1%31725,241,398 i &%
EE0 1T 2D

(©0 RZZTTNEFEXNA BEEEREBH
AZZEN\FREAT+RBZAEEMFS
Z AR BETE  AARD RS RE A
REWM=ZTT N\FHERSE + A
AIEEMR1 158 T 2 B8 31718,311,212
MR EEO. BT Z R -

(d) A2 & # 17 268,000,000 I% & A% M &
01Tz &M - R U E Big World
International Limited ([ Big World|) & &5 &,
BITRA 2 MAORIE - FFIERMEES2
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BOIBMZFERSEES -
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On 26 October 2007, the Company proposed a bonus issue
of new warrants (“2009 Warrants”) to subscribe for shares
equal to 20% of the issued number of shares of HK$0.1

each on 8 March 2008, to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of members on 23
November 2007. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
on 23 November 2007, 337,635,936 units of 2009 Warrants
were issued to the shareholders of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$1.6 per share of HK$0.1 each of the
Company as a result of the bonus issue of new warrants. The
2009 Warrants will expire on 16 April 2009.

During the year, 2008 Warrants and 2009 Warrants carrying
subscription rights of HK$81,853,441 and HK$14,994
respectively were exercised.

As at 30 June 2008, the outstanding number of 2009 Warrants
was 337,626,565 units (2007: number of 2008 Warrants
outstanding was 310,893,952 units).

The Company, Kantone, a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Digital HK, a 78% owned subsidiary of the
Company, each has a share option scheme under which

eligible persons, including directors of the Company, Kantone,

Digital HK or any of their respective subsidiaries, may be
granted options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
Kantone and Digital HK respectively.

On 29 November 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”) which,
with a remaining life of about 5 years, will expire on 28
November 2012. The purpose of the Champion Option
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel and
other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
Under the Champion Option Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any directors, employees, consultants,

advisors in respect of business, operation, management,

technology, legal, accounting and financial matters

of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
the aforesaid persons or a company beneficially owned
by the aforesaid persons as well as customers and
suppliers of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The share option granted by the Company
is exercisable at any time for a period determined by its
directors which will be less than ten years from the date
of grant, where the acceptance date should not be later
than 21 days after the date of offer.

20

RZZBZLE+A-1+A  ARBEHEAD
T+ +—A -+ =HARIREEM A
@W&‘%%’Xﬁ%ﬁiﬁl AREE ([ ZTETNF
RREFE])  URBHEERZ=ZZZNE=AN
EZE%G&@%E%%Z#&@EN%Ek
me RE—BR-_ZT+F+—A-+=HA
Bz —ALEAER  ARBITHARRIRE
7% + 337,635,93610 — T NFRBRIEEC BT
FARARRRE - BRERANZERA 67 T2 HHR
BERBARAIEREEIBTZRG - =%
THFERBEBER -_STNFENA+BE
e

FR - D RIK A 81,853,441 7T 2 14,9947 7T
REE _ ST \FRBREBR_TTNLFR
A B O T TIE o

RZZBEZN\FANA=1+H KETFEZ_ZF
NFRIHEE B 337,626,565 (ZFFF

RETE 2 Z T N\FRIREEHF310,893,952
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The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Champion Option
Scheme is the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; or (iii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which the options may be granted under the Champion
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the
Champion Option Scheme under the existing mandate
limit of the Champion Option Scheme. However, the
total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any one grantee in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders. No share option under the
Champion Option Scheme has been granted by the
Company since its adoption.

On 29 November 2002, Kantone adopted the share
option scheme (the “Kantone Option Scheme”) which
will expire on 28 November 2012. The purpose of the
Kantone Option Scheme is to attract and to retain
quality personnel and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of Kantone and
its subsidiaries (“Kantone Group”). Under the Kantone
Option Scheme, the directors may grant options to any
eligible persons of Kantone Group, including directors,
employees, consultants, advisors in respect of business,
operation, management, technology, legal, accounting
and financial matters of Kantone, its subsidiaries or
affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers and suppliers of Kantone Group, to subscribe
for shares in Kantone. Options granted are exercisable
at any time for a period determined by its directors which
will be less than ten years from the date of grant, where
the acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.
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The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided
therein) of the option under the Kantone Option Scheme
is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date

of grant, which must be a business day; or (iii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which the
options may be granted under the Kantone Option
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of Kantone at the date of approval of the Kantone Option
Scheme under the existing mandate limit of the Kantone
Option Scheme. However, the total maximum number

of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of Kantone from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of Kantone in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from Kantone’s shareholders. No share option
under the Kantone Option Scheme has been granted
since its adoption.

On 29 November 2002, Digital HK adopted a share
option scheme (the “DHK Option Scheme”) which

will expire on 28 November 2012. The purpose of the
DHK Option Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with
incentive to contribute to the business and operation of
Digital HK and its subsidiaries (the “DIGITALHK Group”).
Under the DHK Option Scheme, the directors may

grant options to any directors, employees, consultants,
advisors in respect of business, operation, management,
technology, legal, accounting and financial matters

of Digital HK, its subsidiaries or affiliates or any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
the aforesaid persons or a company beneficially owned
by the aforesaid persons as well as customers and
suppliers of the DIGITALHK Group, to subscribe for
shares of Digital HK. Options granted by Digital HK are
exercisable at any time for a period of up to ten years
from the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 21 days after the date of offer.
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The exercise price of the option under the DHK Option
Scheme is the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange'’s daily quotation sheet on the date

of grant, which must be a business day; and (iii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. No share
option under the DHK Option Scheme has been granted
by Digital HK since its adoption.

In April 2008, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Big World for cash consideration of HK$50 million
and the issue of 268 million shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company with a fair value of HK$313,560,000.

The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition was as
follows:

BT BEREA RN 2 BRE 2T
EEAONRMHEE : (\RNREBH(ER
EER)EMIAEARERMBZER
Bt U Ti(E ¢ 3k (iil) BB U B )
A AEE % B 2By FIHRHE - =&
UREERE - BERMUR - BIBEEE
BARRBEIB BB S ER L ER

FERHE -

R_ZZN\FMEA

CAEENBRERE

50,000,000 7 T I 2 17 268,000,000 % &F A&
HE1B T2 ARE KRG
313,560,000/% 7T + W Big World 2 2 #0E 3

TR o

RUHE B PTUEE 2 BB FE#HFIA0T -

CHAFEER

Premium
paid on
acquisition
Book value of asset Total
Uy B8 R
REE ZBfRE a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHIT FHT FHET
Net assets acquired: KB EFE
Deposits and prepaid development costs &% RIBRFE KA 355,828 11,733 367,561
Other payables A EL A BR X (4,001) - (4,001)
351,827 11,733 363,560
Total consideration RRE 363,560
The above acquisition was satisfied by ATFIA A AT R AE -
— Cash —Re 50,000
— Shares of the Company — RARIRGD 313,560
363,560
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition RWEBELE 2 RS F RS
Cash consideration paid ENReRE 50,000

The Group acquired Big World for the deposits and prepaid
development costs which it has paid for development of a
software system for logistics and smart port management
system for a port currently under development in the PRC and
hence the acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition of
asset.
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FA - AEBMEEHZRS RBEMRAZEKAN
216,840,000/8 7T ( ZZZ L4 : 245,700,000/
T ) DAREVE TR B8 2 IR -

During the year, the Group disposed of its deposits and
prepaid development costs of HK$216,840,000 (2007:
HK$245,700,000) in return for equity interest in certain
available-for-sale investments.

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, AR - BKE L& EHER
plant and equipment and development R R 2 RERAZ
costs for systems and networks: B
Authorised but not contracted for BIREERETL 362,732 343,700

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum REER - AEBEZIEEBAHEAYFERIE L
lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating TR AEEEHE AR RRENHEEREZ
leases in respect of rented premises and motor vehicles ZEBE R ¢

which fall due as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T REF "B T RETF &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THER FAT FAT
Operating leases TEREER
which expire:
Within one year —FR 4,501 3,432 8,288 3,226
In the second to fourth year #=ZF Mm% 4,960 3,592 4,336 4,699
9,461 7,024 7,569 7,925

KiEmr 2 FHREFHAE—20F - MiES
TR —EMEZ FHFHER o

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to four years
and rentals are fixed for an average term of one to four years.

WEER - AEESRBERAT A BEBRKE R
BERBERRZANZIHERNT

At the balance sheet date, the Group contracted with
tenants in respect of leasing of plant and machinery and

telecommunications networks which fall due as follows:

2008 2007

—2EN\F —TEEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET THET

Within one year —FR 1,960 13,902
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFRF 29,842 26,721
After five years RAEFE 7,211 1,601
39,013 42,224
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.

The key management personnel are the directors of the
Company. The details of remuneration paid to them are set

out in note 10.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June

2008 are as follows:

for the year ended 30 June 2008  #E = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFZE

B A2 5

TEEEABRARAES - ENREFHHZ

FBEENHIFE0

B i) A

R-FEAFAA=TA  ARAAEEEHE

RALZFFENT

Proportion of

Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
SR/ BRIRA KRB
DNRER Rd-ick e/ ZmEL ERTRAEELS TEEH
100BESTSHOP.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Provision of e-shopping
Bt LER-28T and internet-based activities
RETFRIREBBRS
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1,500,000 31%* Investment holding
ERERRES AR —1,500,000% 7T RERR
Big World International Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$50,000 100% Investment holding
BELHS L3R —50,000% T RERR
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 51% Investment holding
RBRARES LiER—1%T RERR
Briar International Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$50,000 100% Software development
EEGHE L3RR —50,000% T BHHE
Champion (Cook Islands) Cook Islands Ordinary — HK$1 100% Investment holding
Limited * ERES LER-18T RERR
Champion Consortium British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary - US$1 100% Strategic investment
Limited PRC LER—1%T REUERE
ABRMRES/
HE
Champion Fax Machine British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary - US$1 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited PRC LRR—1%1 RERR
LEEMRES/
i
Champion International British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary - US$50,000 100% Strategic investments and
Investments Limited PRC Li®iR —50,000% T investments in
RERERES/ telecommunications
i networks and
e-commerce projects
REURERREBEAAR
EYHEER
Champion Luck Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
International Limited B LRk 28T NERE
BERRERRA
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. REMEAE =
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ZREL/ BRITRA FRAEEZ
DRER REm AE/ZMEE ERTRATELS TEEH
Champion Million Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
Industries Limited Bt L@k 28T NERE
HEEZARAA
Champion Pacific Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
Investment Limited £ LEk-28T NERE
BTREBRAA
Champion Technology Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% Sales of general systems
Limited B Deferred - HK$1,000,000 products and provision
BERKARRA LBk —1,00087T of services and software
IEREAR—1,000,0007 T licensing
HE—RAGERRIRHRS
RBMEETE
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Internet business
BEREERAA Bt Lak-28T LS
Chief Champion Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% Property investment
T2ARRAA Bt Deferred - HK$10,000 NERE
EiEk—1,000%T
JEITRE — 10,000/ 70
Chinese Paging Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% Paging operations
Company Limited £ Deferred - HK$2,000,000 BIFE
PXEFERAF AR —1,000%7
JEFERE —2,000,000 7T
Chinese Science & Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Internet business
Technology Limited B LEk-0ET BERER
PXRHEARAT
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa Ordinary - US$1 100% Internet business
BELHS LER—1%T Bl
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 78% Provision of an
EBARRAHE LRk —1%T e-commerce platform
for payment process for
global business
RERRARMEFHENT
BFTa
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM * Cayman lslands Ordinary - HK$15,000,000 78% Investment holding
HEEE HEES L%k —15,000,000% T REER
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. EBEM)E AR &z
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Bl A BRIRA NG| Y3
DRER BEWwE e/ ZmEL ERTRAEELS TERH
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 78% Provision of an
e ERR 28T g-commerce platform
and evaluation of
e-commerce
opportunities
REEFHBETARTRET
Bt
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 78% Provision of an
HEEABRERDA Bk LEk-2ET e-commerce platform
for payment process
for retail customers and
e-mall based in
Hong Kong
REERPRUBB AR
EFASRMEFHENR
BFTa
Eagle Landmark Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 100% Provision of treasury services
ERERRNE LER—1%T RESBURT
ESP International Group Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Advertising and recruitment
Limited B LiER 2% agency
ESPEIRE EREARAT EERARRERT
Happy Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP25,000 100% Provision of documentation
Company Limited R AR — 25,0008 services and arrangement
EXBRAR and business consultant
REXHRBRBEZER
B
Happy Union Development Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
Limited B LERk-28T NERE
EHERERAA
Harilela Kantone Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 55% Investments in
Telecommunications B EER—1000057 telecommunications
Limited networks
REBGHEE
High Win Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 100% Investment holding and
HBURRAE LRk —1ET strategic investment
REZRRKBILRE
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited R LBk —100,000M9% services, data
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. REMEAE =
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ZREL/ BRITRA FRAEEZ
DRER REm AE/ZMEE ERTRATELS TEEH
Hong Kong IT Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Information technology
Alliance Limited Bt Lk —0ET development
BRERMBBEARAT BRAARR
Hydro-Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 100% Investment holding
REABRES LRR—1%T RERR
Internet Vehicles Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Provision of internet
EBEAERRAR B L@k —2%T related services
REBBIERY
Kannet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Internet operations
BRPRARAR BE LER-28T LS
Kantel Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Investment in
AREAEEERAT B L@k —2% T telecommunications
networks
REBRHE
Kantone Holdings Limited * Cayman lslands Ordinary - HK$341,105,968 51% Investment holding
AREEERLA" FEHs EiBIR—341,105,9687% T RERR
Kantone Paging Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% Trading of pagers and
Company Limited 6 Deferred - HK$2,000,000 provision of paging services
BRPXETERAR LAk 1,000 EEEITH LR AETRE
IEIEAR—2,000,0007% 7T
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary - £5,500,000 51% Investment holding
%A E1BIR—5,500,000%8 RERR
Keen Pacific Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$1 51% Provision of treasury service
EETHE L@k —1%T TRAEIB AR
Kontone International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Investment holding
ARERARAT Bt LEk-28T RERR
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited * Cook Islands Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% Investment holding
ER#S EER—10000%7T RERR
Lucky (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited R LM —100,00029% services, research and

development, and
selling activities

REEBRRS  HERFE -
MEEED
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

for the year ended 30 June 2008  #F = ZFF/NAFANH =1 H IFFE

Proportion of

37. FEM)E ARz

Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
Bl A BRIRA NG| Y3
DRER BEWwE e/ ZmEL ERTRAEELS TERH
Lucky Success Development Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
Limited Bt LER-2ET NERE
ERERERAA
Lucky Tone Investments Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
Limited Bt LER-28T NERE
HBREBRAA
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary - £5,500,002 51% Investment holding
HeHs LR —5,500,0025 RERER
Marcotte Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$1 100% Investment holding
BELHS LER—1%T RERR
Muttitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary - £3,830,107 51% Investment holding,
£ LBk —3,830,107545 design and manufacture
of telecommunications
systems and equipment
REAR Rt REEZR
AR
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary - MR285,000 51% Manufacture of
HRAEE LR — 2850005 KA T telecommunications
equipment
EEBEEM
Muttiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary - €1,022,584 51% Distribution of
E EiEMR—1,022 58480 telecommunications
equipment
PEEREEM
Multitone Rentals Limited United Kingdom Ordinary - £100 51% Leasing of systems products
% LR —1005 8 HEZGER
New Telecomm Company Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$6,000,000 100% Trading in telecommunications
Limited e iR —6,000,000% T equipment and provision
MEZEARBRAT of related services
EEB RN IRMARIRS
Peak Vantage Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 51% Provision of treasury services
Macau LER-1ET REEBURT
ARABERES/
AP
QQKK.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Provision of e-commerce,
Bt LER-28T m-commerce and
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PAGE 100

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. REMEAE 2
Proportion of
Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ZREL/ BRTRA FRAEEZ
DRER fedpiok s AE/ZMEE ERTRAEELS TEEH
Shenzhen Hengyu Science PRC Ordinary - RMB21,000,000 31%* Investment holding
& Technology Company 3 ik AR21,000,0007 RERR
Limited *
EEHE (R) BRAGS
Silverstrand Investments Samoa Ordinary - US$1 51% Investment holding
Limited BELHS LER—1ET RERR
Smart Delta Inc. Samoa Ordinary - US$1 51% Provision of treasury services
EEEHE LER—1%T REEMBRSE
Smart (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 51% Provision of services, software
Offshore) Limited L LBk —100,000P9% licensing and trading of
E ORPIBEREERS) telecommunications
BRAR equipment
RS - BHRTER
EESEHEM
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited R LB —100,000M9% services, research and
development and selling
activities
REERRS - HERRE -
RHEED
Top Gallop International Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 100% Investment holding
ERERRES LER—1%T REER
Veery Happy International Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Property investment
Limited B L@k —o% T NERE
AEERERRA
Victory (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary - MOP100,000 100% Provision of services, software
Offshore) Limited R LR —100,00089% licensing and trading in
£R (RFBEREERSE) telecommunications products
BRAR REERE  BHETERER
BREM
Wollaston Limited Samoa Ordinary - US$1 51% Investment holding
EEGHS LRR—1%T RERR
¥28.COM Inc. British Virgin Islands Ordinary - US$1 100% Provision of e-commerce,

m-commerce and
internet based activities

REEFHE  RIHER
BB BRRS
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Proportion of

Nominal value nominal value
Place of of issued of issued share
incorporation/ share capital/ capital held
Name of company operations registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ZRAEL/ BRTRA KRR
ARER REhy e/ ZmEL ERTRAREELS TEXB
Y28.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% Provision of e-commerce
AHEERAH & LRk 28T m-commerce and
internet based activities
RESTHZ RPEIR
EBRRARYE
Y28 Innovations * Cayman lslands Ordinary - HK$0.1 100% Provision of e-commerce,
HERE LER-01%T m-commerce, and
internet based activities
RESTHZ RPEIR
EBRRARYE
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary - US$2 51% Strategic investments and
Macau LRk —2%TT investments in
RESBARES/ e-commerce projects
AP RREERELREEFHERA
* Directly held by the Company & BAATEERE

# Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years
commencing 17 October 2003.

A Kantone holds 60% equity interest in these companies, hence it is
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each of
the above-mentioned subsidiaries entitled the holders thereof
to:

(@) afixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per
annum for any financial year of the company in question
in respect of which the net profits of such company
exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b) onawinding-up, a return of the capital paid up on such
shares out of the surplus assets of the company in
question after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has
been distributed in such winding up in respect of each of
the ordinary shares of such company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt

securities subsisting at 30 June 2008 or at any time during the
year.
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The following events occurred subsequent to the balance
sheet date:

(@ On 28 July 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Good
Holdings Limited (“GHL”") by issue of 620,000,000
shares of Kantone to the independent vendors. GHL
is an investment holding company and its subsidiary
is engaged in the development of gaming software
contents, sports websites and sports network systems.
The acquisition of GHL was completed in September
2008. The fair value of the shares issued at completion
date was HK$328,600,000.

At the date of this report, management of the Group is
still in the midst of determining the financial effect of the
acquisition.

(b)  On 12 August 2008, the Company acquired 299,290,629
shares of Kantone from Lawnside International Limited
(“Lawnside”), a shareholder of the Company, the
consideration of which will be satisfied entirely by the
issue of HK$188,553,096 convertible bonds of the
Company (the “Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible
Bonds are convertible into shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$1.09, subject
to adjustments in accordance with the terms of the
Convertible Bond agreement. The Convertible Bonds
bears interest at 1% per annum payable bi-annually
and will mature at the second anniversary date of issue
of the Convertible Bonds (“Maturity Date”). Lawnside
may require the Company to redeem the Convertible
Bonds at par plus interest at any time after the date of
issue up to the Maturity Date. The Convertible Bonds are
convertible at any time after the date of issue up to the
Maturity Date.

At the date of this report, management of the Group is
still in the midst of determining the financial effect of the
issue of the Convertible Bonds.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class

of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY M#H%

Year ended 30 June

BEAAZTALER
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
“EENE -TTtF —T5,F -TERF -TEMF -$T-F -FE-F CET-F CIETE AANE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tgn THr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  Thr  TAr  TEr TEn

TURNOVER EXE 3635049 3164267 2096668 2461710 2240068 1874392 1633388 1510779 1457,181 1393682
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY KRARR

ACTIVITIES BEFORE S50l

TAXATION

Profit from operating activities ArEbEEER
excluding other operating ftems B EFHEH 997,664 923140 762470 6100

3 468476 367550 205313 296272 436035 303533

Other operating tems BipeTER (740386)  (91071)  (8124) (6429 (104492) (127387 (2893 (557 (B3N (915%)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BBAER 2572718 832,069 704346 573584 363984 240,163 132420 290699 352728 212,001
TAXATION 33 (2063 (0,171 @) G () (49 @ G4 @01 (1219
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEER 255215 822898 704,261 573067 363280 238734 131993 290115 349716 210,786
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: EfERR -
Equity holders of RAARAER
the Company BAA 190,456 626818 549994 458726 296,550 191,247 133,040 249403 303855 185,552
Minority interests DYRRER 64,759 196,080 154,267 114341 06,730 47,487 (1,047) 40,112 45,860 25,234

255215 822898 704261 573067 363280 238734 131993 200115 349715 210,786

DIVIDENDS RE 48,112 96,686 73,096 59,867 55,304 27,604 23319 16,286 25,389 13,868

At 30 June

R~A=tA
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
“BB\F -“TTLF _—IENF -IERF _TEIMF -T3-F _-TIE-F -E3-F EETE NNE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T Thr i T Thr i Th ThL Th i

TOTALASSETS BE8E 8446159 7657367 6453200 5561082 4045082 4280035 3941869 3444062 340308 2707071
TOTAL LIABLLITIES afEfE 630554 483346 39558 36021 3603 76BI7 743120 60408 8GAOS4 54261
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS R#&s 7815605 7194021 6003642 5165061 4580008 3511908 3198749 2840923 2556264 216482
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ROFRAER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE RRAEL

COMPANY Ragz 6,685,006 6137672 5268760 4704867 4282113 3210764 2042064 2581892 2340227 1999992
SUBSCRIPTION RIGHT ~BLTHE

RESERVE OF A LISTED DFzAER

SUBSIDIARY 1 = 463 1850 1850 - - - - - -
MINORITY INTERESTS HURRER 1130599 1051710 833032  4B344 366895 301144 266685 260031 21607 164828

7815605 7194021 6003642 5165061 4509008 3511908 3198749 2840923 2556254 2,164,620
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